2

t/“ Bracknell
Forest

Council
NOTICE OF MEETING

Governance & Audit Committee
Tuesday 29 January 2013, 7.30 pm
Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House, Bracknell

To: The Governance & Audit Committee

Councillor Ward (Chairman), Councillor Wade (Vice-Chairman), Councillors Allen, Ms Brown,
Heydon, McCracken, Thompson, Worrall and Mr G S Anderson

cc: Substitute Members of the Committee

Councillors Mrs Ballin, Blatchford, Mrs Hayes, Leake, Mrs McCracken and Mrs Temperton

ALISON SANDERS
Director of Corporate Services

EMERGENCY EVACUATION INSTRUCTIONS

If you hear the alarm, leave the building immediately.
Follow the green signs.

Use the stairs not the lifts.

Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

A OWON -

If you require further information, please contact: Priya Patel
Telephone: 01344 352233

Email: priya.patel@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Published: 21 January 2013



Governance & Audit Committee

Tuesday 29 January 2013, 7.30 pm

Council Chamber, Fourth Floor, Easthampstead House,
Bracknell

AGENDA

1.  Apologies for Absence

To receive apologies for absence and to note the attendance of any
substitute members.

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are requested to declare any Personal Interests. Any
Member with a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter should
withdraw from the meeting when the matter is under consideration and
should notify the Democratic Services Officer in attendance that they
are withdrawing as they have such an interest. If the Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest is not entered on the register of Members interests
the Monitoring Officer must be notified of the interest within 28 days.

3. Minutes from Previous Meeting

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting of the
Committee held on 6 November 2012.

4.  Urgent Items of Business

Any other items which, pursuant to Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local
Government Act 1972, the Chairman decides are urgent.

5. Annual External Audit Matters

To receive the external auditor's Annual Certification Report on claims
and returns for 2011/12 and to note the Annual Audit Fee for 2012/13.

6. Treasury Management Report

To review the Treasury Management Report.

7.  Recording of Officer Decisions for Executive Functions

This report seeks the approval of the Committee as to the criteria to be
applied to determine which officer decisions should be recorded and
published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive
Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012 (“the Regulations”).

Page No

23 - 54

55 - 58



10.

11.

Code of Conduct for Members

This report seeks the Committee’s endorsement to a draft revised Code
of Conduct for Members (“the draft Code”) which is set out at Annexe A
of the attached report.

Scheme of Delegation to Officers - Certificate of Lawful Use

This report proposes that power to determine applications for
Certificates of Lawful Use made under the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990 (“the 1990 Act”) should be delegated to the Chief Officer:
Planning and Transport notwithstanding that such an application might
attract objections from more than three households and/or
organisations.

Annual Governance Statement Preparation

To nominate a Member to attend the meeting of the Governance
Working Group which formulates the Annual Governance Statement
(AGS) and the AGS Action Plan.

Date of Next Meeting
26 March 2013.

59-78

79 - 82

83 - 84



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 3

2

GOVERNANCE & AUDIT COMMITTEE /| Bracknell

6 NOVEMBER 2012 —A " Forest
7.30 - 9.00 PM .
Council

Bracknell Forest Borough Council:
Councillors Ward (Chairman), Allen, Ms Brown, Heydon, McCracken, Worrall, Blatchford
(Substitute) and Leake (Substitute)

Independent Members:
Gordon Anderson

Apologies for absence were received from:
Councillors Thompson and Wade

21. Substitute Members
The Committee noted the attendance of the following Substitute Members:

Councillor Blatchford for Councillor Thompson
Councillor Leake for Councillor Wade

22. Declarations of Interest
There were no declarations of interest.

23. Minutes of Previous Meeting

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 September 2012 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

24. Annual Audit Letter 2011/12

Helen Thompson, District Auditor, presented the Audit Commission’s Annual Audit
Letter 2011/12 to the Committee. The Annual Audit Letter focused on the Council's
financial statements and its arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and
effectiveness in the use of resources.

The Annual Audit Letter contained three recommendations which would be
implemented before the 2012/13 audit:

o Keep up improvements in valuation of property, plant and equipment by
ensuring evidence to support valuations is timely, reviewed and consistent

e Continue to improve processes for recording related party transactions
e Strengthen controls over the authorisation of journals

The District Auditor confirmed that the 2011/12 Audit was now complete and thanked
Members and officers for their support and co-operation throughout the audit
process.



25.

Members took the opportunity to ask the District Auditor about the new external audit
arrangements which had now come into effect. It was noted that there had been no
changes in personnel.

RESOLVED that the Annual Audit Letter 2011/12, at Appendix A of the report, be
noted.

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy -
Mid-Year Review Report 2012/13

The Chief Technical Accountant presented the Treasury Management Strategy
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-Year Review Report 2012/13. The
mid-year report had been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice and
included an economic update for the first six months of 2012/13, a review of the
Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy, the
Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators), a review of the Council’s
investment portfolio for 2012/13 and a review of compliance with Treasury and
Prudential Limits for 2012/13.

There were initial signs that economic growth may have returned after three quarters
of recession but, worldwide, there remained huge uncertainties in economic
forecasts.

It was reported that there were no policy changes to the Treasury Management
Strategy Statement. The approved limits within the Annual Investment Strategy were
not breached during the first six months of 2012/13 and no changes to these limits
were proposed.

The report detailed the Council’s current investment counterparty selection criteria,
the key criteria being the credit ratings supplied by the three main credit ratings
agencies. However, the financial crisis following the Lehman’s collapse and the
recent sovereign credit-worthiness difficulties, almost all financial institutions had
experienced a substantial cut in their credit-ratings, often to a level that would render
most counterpart criteria unsuitable for practical purposes. In addition, it was widely
acknowledged that credit-ratings, on their own, were nor sufficient in capturing and
evaluating the relative levels of risk attached to a counterparty. Accordingly, the
Council’s Treasury Management advisers had developed a more sophisticated mode
utilising credit ratings supplemented with overlays of credit watches and outlooks in a
weighted scoring system which was combined with Credit Default Swap (CDS)
spreads. An annex to the report outlined how the existing Counterparty List might
look under the proposed changes.

In response to Members’ questions, the Chief Technical Accountant reported that:
e The new model had been in operation for about three years.

o CDS data was updated daily

e The financial markets were still volatile. The new model suggested the
maximum duration of three months for investments with the exception of those
UK part-Nationalised Banks where investments of up to 364 days would be
permissible.

It was agreed that a key be added to the annex to explain what the various ratings
meant. It was also agreed that the next Treasury Management report should provide
details of where the Council’s £41.7m portfolio was invested.



26.

27.

The Committee requested that its appreciation of the work of the Council’'s Treasury
Management team be recorded.

RESOLVED that
I. the Mid-Year Review Report be shared with members of the Full Council.

II. Officers note the Committee’s comments on the proposed approach to the
future selection of investment counterparties.

The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to
Information) (England) Regulations 2012

The Borough Solicitor presented a report outlining the requirements of the Local
Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012 issued in September.

The Regulations were not subject to any consultation with local authorities and, whilst
Council procedures could be revised to meet the new requirements regarding Key
Decisions and Notice of Meetings to be held in private, concerns had been expressed
throughout local government about the new requirements for the Recording of
Decisions by Officers.

The previous Regulations contained provisions which required individual Members,
when making any decision and officers when making Key Decisions to make a record
of the decision. However the new Regulations extend the requirement to make a
record to all “Executive Decisions” made by officers and to publish those decisions on
the Councils web-site. The Borough Solicitor reported that if the Council had to
publish a record of all “operational decisions” for Executive functions, it would entail
publishing details of many hundreds of routine decisions each month Accordingly he
recommended that the Corporate Management Team formulate for approval by the
Chairman of the Committee criteria as to when officer non-Key Decisions should be
recorded and published.

Whilst recognising the practical difficulties that the new Regulations had caused,
Members expressed the view that a balance needed to be struck between practicality
of implementation and the desire to secure transparency Accordingly it was agreed
that the proposed provisions relating to the recording of decisions taken by officers be
submitted to the Committee for approval.

RECOMMENDED to Council that the Borough Solicitor be authorised to amend the
Council’'s Constitution to reflect the Regulations save that provisions relating to the
recording of decisions taken by officers be submitted to the Governance and Audit
Committee for approval.

Internal Audit Assurance Report April - September 2012

The Head of Audit & Risk Management presented the Internal Audit report which
provided a summary of Internal Audit activity during the period April to September
2012.

The report stated that, during this period, 8 full reports with an opinion had been
finalised, 15 had been issued in draft awaiting management responses and, in 10
cases, audit work was in progress. However, since the publication of the report, 6 of
the 15 draft reports had been finalised. Of the reports issued, limited assurance
opinions had been given for 4 audits.

3



28.

Further to the weaknesses identified by the External Auditors on the 2009/10 Housing
Benefit and Council Tax Subsidy grant claim, the report detailed results of
unannounced spot check visits during 2011/12 and 2012/13. In response to
Members’ questions the District Auditor reported that significant progress had been
made in reducing systemic errors since the weaknesses had been identified. Given
the complexity of some of the calculation it was inevitable that some errors would
occur.

The Committee noted that three of the limited assurance conclusions related to
schools and expressed concern that the weaknesses identified appeared to be
regarding basic matters that should not have given rise to difficulties. It was
acknowledged that school governing bodies were responsible for financial
management.

RESOLVED that the Internal Audit Assurance Report, April — October 2011 be noted.

Date of Next Meeting
29 January 2013.

CHAIRMAN



Unrestricted

TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29 JANUARY 2013
EXTERNAL AUDIT MATTERS
Borough Treasurer
1 PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.1 To receive the external auditor's Annual Certification Report on claims and returns for
2011/12.
1.2 To note the Annual Audit Fee for 2012/13.
2 RECOMMENDATIONS
That the Governance and Audit Committee:
21 Receive the external auditor’s Annual Certification Report on claims and
returns for 2011/12, and
2.2 Note the Annual Audit Fee for 2012/13.
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS
3.1 To advise the Governance and Audit Committee of the external auditor’s conclusions
and recommendations following the completion of the annual audit of claims and
returns for 2011/12.
3.2 To advise the Governance and Audit Committee of the Annual Audit Fee for 2012/13.
4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
4.1 None
5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION
Annual Certification Report
5.1 The Council claims significant sums of money from the Government and the external

auditor is required to undertake certification work to provide assurance that the
Council’s claims for grant are made properly and that the information contained in
financial returns is reliable. In Bracknell Forest this work is focussed in three areas:
e Housing and council tax benefit
e National non-domestic rates

e Teachers’ pensions

Agenda ltem 5



52

5.3

54

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.3

6.4

6.5

Unrestricted

The external auditor's Annual Certification Report on claims and returns for 2011/12
is attached at Annex A and Helen Thompson, Director, Ernst and Young will attend
the meeting to present the report and answer questions.

Annual Audit Fee 2012/13

Ernst and Young have been awarded a five year contract to audit public bodies in the
South East and are now the Council’s external auditors. The fee for 2012/13 has
been set by the Audit Commission as part of that procurement exercise and will not
increase unless there is a change in the scope of the external auditor’s work.

The letter attached at Annex B sets out the scope of the external auditor's work and
the assumptions underpinning their fee. The Total Code audit fee (£138,564)
represents a reduction of £92,000 when compared to previous years and this saving
has been incorporated within the draft budget proposals that are currently out for
consultation. No savings have been anticipated from the work associated with the
certification of claims and returns at this stage as these costs have proven to be
more volatile in the past. The recent improvements that have been made in the
Council’'s approach to compiling grant claims and returns should, however, result in
an additional saving in the future.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

Nothing to add to the report.

Borough Treasurer

The costs associated with the certification of claims and returns for 2011/12 can be
met from the budget for external audit fees.

A saving was anticipated from the award of the external audit contract to Ernst and
Young. The details are set out in Annex B and summarised in paragraph 5.4 above.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Not applicable

Strategic Risk Management Issues

The change of external auditor represents a potential risk as the Council will need to
adapt to the requirements of Ernst and Young. This risk is being mitigated by
effective communication between the Council, Ernst and Young and Deloitte (the
Council’s internal audit provider), whose work Ernst and Young will place reliance
upon.

Other Officers

Not applicable



Unrestricted

7 CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

71 Not applicable

Method of Consultation

7.2 Not applicable

Representations Received

7.3 Not applicable

Background Papers
None

Contact for further information
Alan Nash, Corporate Services - 01344 352180
Alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk




This page is intentionally left blank



Annual Certification Report (2011/12)
Bracknell Forest Council

Report to those charged with governance

January 2013

Ernst & Young LLP

Elf ERNST & YOUNG
9



Countersiip
Bristol BS1 6BX

““l”l“””lH“m”mmIHH!EHMH*‘“'EJIERNST&YOUNG .

Tet: 0117 881 2050
Fax: 0117 951 2051
WAL Y, GOk

The Members of the Governance and Audit Commitiee

Bracknell Forest Council 18 January 2013
Easthampstead House

Town Square

Brackneli

Berkshire

RG12 1AQ

Dear Members
Annual Certification Report (2011/12)

We are pleased to attach our annual certification report for the forthcbming meeting of the Governance
and Audit Committee. This report summarises the results of certification work that we have undertaken at
Bracknell Forest Council on 2011/12 claims and returns, '

Scope of work

Local authorities claim large sums of public meney in grants and subsidies from central government and
other grant-paying bodies and are required to complete returns providing financial information to
government departments. Often these grant-paying bodies require certification from an appropriately
gualified auditor of the claims and returns submitted to them.

Certification work is not an audit. Certification work involves executing prescribed tests which are
designed to give reasonable assurance that claims and returns are fairly stated and in accordance with
specified terms and conditions.

Under section 28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Audit Commission may, at the request of
authorities, make arrangements for certifying claims and returns because scheme terms and conditions
include a certification requirement. When such arrangements are made, certification instructions issued
by the Audit Commission to Ernst & Young, as appointed auditors of the Council, set out the work we
must undertake before issuing our certificate. We certify grants and claims as they arise throughout the
year to meet the audited claim/return submission deadlines set by the grant-paying bodies.

Statement of Responsibilitieé of Auditors and Audited Bodies

In March 2010 the Audit Commission issued a revised version of the ‘Statement of responsibilities of
auditors and audited bodies’ (‘Statement of responsibilities’). 1t is available from the Chief Executive of
each audited body and via the Audit Commission website.

The statement of responsibilities serves as the formal terms of engagement between the Audit
Commission’s appointed auditors and audited bodies. It summarises where the different responsibilities
of auditors and audited bodies begin and end, and what is to be expected of the audited body in certain
areas.

This Annual Certification Report is prepared in the context of the statement of responsibilities. It is
addressed to the Governance and Audit Committee, and is prepared for the sole use of the audited body:.
We, as appointed auditor, take no responsibility to any third party.

The UK firm Emst & Young LLP i3 alimited liability
parinership registerad in England and Walss with
registered number QC300001 and is 2 mamber firm of
Ernst & Young Global Limited. A list of members' names
is avaitable for inspection &t 1 More London Place,
tondon SE$ 2AF, the fimw's principal piace of business
and registered dffice.

10



Contents

Results of certification work

For the period 1 April 2011 to 31 March 2012 we certified three claims and returns with a total value of
£96.207 million.

Although there have been continuing improvements in the Council's approach to compiling grant claims,
it was siill necessary to qualify and amend the Housing and Council Tax Benefit claim. Details of the
qualification matters are included in section 2. Adjustments to subsidy may arise due to this. The
amendment to the claim increased the grant due to the Council by £1,380.

All deadlines for submission of certified claims and returns were met.

Fees for certification work are summarised in appendix A.

We welcome the opportunity to discuss the contents of this report with you at the Governance and Audit
Committee meeting scheduled for 29 January 2013.

Yours faithfully
For and on behalf of Ernst & Young LLP

David Wilkinson
Ernst & Young LLP

Ernst & Young |ii

11



Contents

Contents

1. Summary of 201112 Certification Work
2. Qualifications in respect of 2011/12 certification work
3. Progress on previous auditor recommendations

Appendix A  Certification Fees

Errst & Young |

12



1| Bunod gisus

ajqesidde JoN - LZe' GON3d winja) uoisuad siayoea)
(CHANN)
a|geoydde joN - re'cs LoV uinal $ajel 9ssllop-uol [BUOBN
‘si0le ucnensseR Bunpal
Ul 11/010Z 20UIs spel uasq sey ssalboid
sjuswAediane J0 UDNROHISSB[D  pue
sBuities jo uojenoEd o) peleel Buisue awiayas
SeNSS| Ulel 8y} — MOl 7 UOHoss 295 (v) (O} vy LoN3d Wsueq xej 1ounod pue Busnoy
"}00410 jBIDUBLIE) PUR ‘aNSS] 10} UOSESY -} sayuenN SO00Y 8oUBIojoM LLINGed JO BHBID
{v) juswipuary snfeA wWieD )
(D) uopeosyEnD rANINR (4 uopsna sy
iz 1Nl

MIOA UOBRDIIIED Z1/LL0Z o Alewiuing

FIOAA UCEEILO N 7 1/L107 IO AlRluung

13



7| Bunoy iswg

‘Buisue uonenys siyj Buploae

snyj ainyn} @y} ui paspuadsns aq Ajleonewoine
[Im swiepR syiesp jo uonedsifals Bumolo)
Jey) sueaw awwesBoid @ouQ s 8L, 8}
10 Uononpoaul BY) ‘ssajelUaAs] 10l 2} jo
USHEIJINISSE|ISILU 8} JO uoneaidisiul sioupne
au} Ypm 9s1be Jou $90p |I0Unos 8yl |yons sy
‘'sas0dind jijsusq xey 1ounoo Jo) Juswiedlaas
[e21Uyo8) Jo ainjeu oy} Buiuueiep

Ul Z8G/@66 1 JuaINIsU] AIoJME)S Ypm Adwios
0] UM S1 8lEMYOS BB §,|10uUn0D syl

‘pPanuURUoD
8q || pue JBdA 18B| 8U] JIBA0 SJUSLUSSISSE

10 Qijenb syt vl eseasou) Apeals B

usss sey swuweibold siy] anss| iyl ssalppe
o} sBujuiee spmoul YoIYm SWiep jo ebejusarad
Jaybiy e sapiaoid mou paysayo aq ol

oldwes opuel 84} S109|9S 1B} SIBM}OS By |
‘paseyo Bulutel) pue ygels yim uosiassdns suo
0} SUO ]2 passalppe puE Payusp) sle SWoou|
Burenojes ul payuap| Senss| ‘peyoeLD ale
suswAed yBiy |le pue YoM 19010 JUSLISSassE
He Jo %0 Buposys jo) sisxe swwesboid ¢

dAAT BUI O J8R3] BYL U] SIUBWILIOD J18U] Papniou

am pue aouepind ay Jo uoneleidiaiul no yum aeube
10U Op SIBIIHOo |1 Usye| ucnedllenh sy U pauoda
SEM SIU ] "S9Ip JUEWIED B UsUm Jisusg Jo luawiedisro
ay; o} Bune|ss aseo pajjISSEosiu) 8U0 ™

paluspt pue ‘esle S} U1 MJOM [BUORIDRE N0 AlED
0} paiinbad aloj@iay} alem apA 1sed a4yl Ul paigiuep;
usaq oAey SBWABMISAO XB) [IOUNOD JO UDHEISSED
Y} Yum swie|goid uswhediono syl Jo UOREOIWISSE|D
8I0J2J8Y) pue sshed a1} uo Buipuadep sauea Apisgns
Lo jordwl 2y} PRLNIJC 8ABY SJUSWAEAISAD 8oUQ

‘BRIE SIY)
U] 840018 BUIINPSI UG $100) 0} 8sNUIUOT PINCYS [12UN0D)
al| “eys| uonedyenb sy ul pauodas SEM SIY |
Weusq jo Juswiedisao ue o) paf om) pue pedw ou
pey U0 ‘geusq Jo sjuswiAzdiapun of ps| 1IN0} — SICLS
LM suieD ueaRs Jayung 8 paynuepl siyj Bupsel no
puspe o} palinbal auam am ‘Ised ay) Ul UBSLIE BABY
SUIOTU JO WORBIND|ED 84} Ul SI0LS SY "10302UI $BM
UCIIBIND[ED SLUDDLH BY} JUSLUIS[HRUD U0 1oedwl Ou sem
a1sy; yBnoyle ‘sieum WD JoUMn, B DUR 8S0J8 Jisuadg
, 30 JUBWARCISDUN UE S4BUM SWIBID OM) DRILIBP;
am 'sWIB 09 Jo eidwies [eRudl By} wal4 Apisgns

lamo| B an@oal Aew [Iounon) auy} piedioac s 1jeusq

4] "SHBWIED 0] sluafediaon 1o sjuswAedspun

0] pes| UBD SWOdUL JO BONREINS[ED 9Y) Ui SI0LT

swalos
euag xe) |Iounos pue Buisnol

ue{d uonoe pesibe pue SIUSLIMDY SI9DIL0

Buisye sy pue 2nss}

wimey e

‘mofeq papiroid sue Z1/11L0Z Bulnp spew suonesyijend su) jo s|ieja( SUORIPUOD PUB SULIS} SWSYDS ) UM PaIjdLios Jou sey [lounog auy 4o ‘uinjal
Jo wiefo syj Ul Sway Jo Wieyl Ue Jaro Auiepsoun Jo juswealbesip si aisy) aisum paienb si Apoq Buifed-jueiB aiy} o) anssi am 1Y) alesiues ay |

HAOM UOIBOIIIRD ZL/LLOT 10 10adsas Ul sucnesiiend

S, UGIROINLED ZL/LLOT 40 1madesl Ul suolempleny

14



£ Bunoj ziswg

‘UONEDYISSEID WLOU] 0] JoNpne

Ul LM LUOISSNDSIP PUB 82IAPE SIUYl Lodn

A3 [Jm Iounony sy} SWIER JO UOHREDISSE|D
seudordde ay) uo apew aq 03 sjuswsbpn|

Ble 2isY) SIBUAA SONUOUINE |BIO] JBYJ0

pue spadxse WL SoIApE UD paseq sWIeD jo
UCHEDIHSSE[D 3yl smalnad AgnBal rouned ay |

Jolia onewslsAs se papiebal
10U ade ple siaguinu jo uolusodsuel; o} anp
asom sieded Bupjiom Ul paynuap S10119 oy |

‘giead shoiaaud

Ul payiodal usag sey SIYL WD ay} Jo Ped 108100
Bl O PSAOL DIBM SSSED B3 pUE APISUNS B} LD
1oedwi OU peYy SIU| paIISSE|SSIW Usaq pey seiuadosd
saUloy spdolt Ui Buial sjuewie Joj sased .

siy} pepodal am 'L 1/0|0Z Ul se ‘pue
000'GLF JO S2IDUBdSIDSIP PUNDY SAA JBYIC LDES Yim
B[I0UDIBS PINOYS ULIC) LHE[D SU) UC SBlUS 8} .

Apisgns aul Uo 10ed41U] ou pel
sy} ssaded Bupiiom BulApepun suyj palal Ajoslon
0} S]|20 0} SpELU @I8M SIUSLIPUSIE 0M) .

aA0kdW 6] 2NURUOD pINoys
[OUNGD) B4} auaym seaie DUMOL0) BU) PILUSPE SAA

"SI} JOJ papUSWE SEM WIBD By ]
“Jolle |ue puney) pug Z1/110Z ut Bugssl [euoippe 1no
pelieD om 'L1/010Z Ul SSOUEMO|[E JUBJ JO] S81epDeg
BuiAjisselo Ul slolia [2ieASS alam alal} Sy pescidul

OS|E SEY SWIBD PIIEPYIE] JO UCHEDSSE|D 8y ]

"11A0L0¢ Ui uBy) psijjusp
siem SR ARCIEAD YIM SI0NID Jomay llelan)

W0 8Uj JO 8INjeU BU} 0} aNp aseD
palB|CSE UE 8¢ O} PoUILLIBIEP SEM SIUL X8} [IDUnod
1oy uswiAedionc Jo 2dAl Waialp B JO UOREOILSSEID

Bl 1981105 0} palinbal sem JustUpUsilE aUD .

HIOM UGHEORINES Z1/LLOZ JO 1099581 Uf SUOREDIEND

15



| Bunoy g iswg

"SBLWIOY 810w U SFUBLIED JO 1090S8) Ui S81Bgad
JuB) W Ucu Jo) palinbad fjus slem sjuswishpe Upny

"SI0HS SIBUILIR ©] 20098 BLNN SUIBWS) 818y |,
"ZL/LL0Z W peaosdun sey uoneoyissen wauiedenn

PeRILIGNS SeMm LWIBD By} 2i0/8q JOLS
Ue PSLUSPI S28U0 UMO $,HOUNOD aU) Z1/LL0Z Ut pue
sajoURUS) polenBal U O PalUED Uaaq SBy MIoOM Lonp

waweaoidwl Jeyling suwos Jo) adoog

sjuswifediaro pue sepueug) peyrinhal

‘SRS JUBI Y H UoU S8 YOns L /0107
U punoy sioie Jo) sejnoiued u ‘srebylion
Ul SBSED JO UONBIISSEIO Ul MIIADY

BuoBuQ "UOBEMISSE[D Ul SI01S JO 19A3] U] 80npey

©iauD Wawsbeusw

UMO B [IOUNGD aU) 10 P3P92U B} SABS OS[E PINOM

) Hpne voleayiies syl Suuoddns se |jom sy IaiepD
lles} ay) exew o} 2dods {is s1 818U} INg WL Z1/L1L02
e} Jo Bupss; ano Buunp sjuswscidwl paiou app

Jualsaokdw Jsypn} awos 104 adoog
"UO SN00J €] JI2UN0N) Syl 1o} BRle
UB SUIBWIBI SIY} O ‘PUNO) SJ8M SI0US 884Ul L1/01L0Z U]

‘ZL/1L0Z Ul SloL8 Ug) punoj am seduies o uo paseg

Wwawaacidwi 1oy adoog

"apEW Ugaq 8By SjUoLUSSESSE
MOU JO 120} JED{0 B S| 2Usly 8insug

sBunes Buissesse

ZL0Z udy | Ul 810412 JO [8AR} BU) 23NPS8J 0] 2NURUDD

suoieInaEd sHuLlEs Ul SIous
Suonpal uo paJinbel [[IIs S| ¥om YBNouye wies Z1/1102
ay} Jo Bupise; ano Buunp sjuswieacldl) paiou apa

Jawsacsdwl JaULng aLlos 10} adoog

HRusg fIounod pue Jisusg
Buisnoy Joy Apisgns Buie pue Bulpdeme ul
BuloBup  $I08 Jo [9A9] e} Butanpa uo snooy ay) dasy

SRIBYS JUBLInG

auipesg uoioe pasiby

MOjaq PallEjep S oM UOIEOHINSD JuIB | L/0L0Z WO SUOEPUSLULICDa) uo ssaiboid

SUOnEepUaLILIcTsad Jojipne snojaaid uo ssaubold

SUOIRDUSUILCDSS J0JIphe snonald uo sseifiosd

16



g | Bunop g 1suim

Wel Z1L/LL0E
2y} jo Bupssl no Bulnp sjuswuaaoidul PaICU SR

pajusLus|dul

‘Aaanoeyge pue Apdwoid wisyl resip o)
paued s1 uoioe os palmbal s jeym U0 Jes(d
paaLLB|cLLg ale JJEIS SHSUS POsiel ele sausnb jpne sy

wodai
0} $8NSSI OU paRuLpl g1/1107 ut Buise) [euolippy

papsaduw)

‘pedinbal §i Suties spraoad
BuiBup  pue si0ue |1Bp LRlS & aisy} Aum a1ebisaau]

dMC S 0] Hodel Ino Ul SJusund sy papniol
ABY am DUE MBIA SN0 4IA saalbesip ounod ey

“JUBLLIBID E JO yjesp
a1 0] enp JuswAecisA0 U LYLIM pUnO) SEM JOLID SUD

wswasosdw Jo) sdoog

"SBIP JUBLUED & UsLMm
sjualiAediano spjpuaq xe| launod BulAyssed
Jop suenenBal uy sbueys auy) o} salejel siyy

“wie ApISgns pue SI1emyos ayj Ul paws)al

SNIELSs JUaLING

BulobuQ aie ‘suopejnbal Jsuaq Ul sebueyd ainsuy
suipes _ uokoy peoiby

SUDEPUSWILICoRY JOEpNE snonaad uo sseiboryd

17



@] Bunch iUy

Zov'es 60T'2L ol
_________ slBLUIISH 681y mm__‘_,”,m;_, Buniodes pue m:_ccmﬁ_,._,
AR AR -
U uoeayisd Bunba TN oet Sowibs pRdEsd
mr.:ow 1012 _ Wb usippyo pajgesip oy ybiy
ul ucheaed Bulinbal JoN ~ Buie pue jueif aieop|iyo pue sieek Aues ‘Lels aing
siesh ¢ Apaz padinbal
si Bugsay so|ny s€ Z1/1LL0T gLzl 9LZ'Z uinjad udisuad sisyoes|
_._,E_,‘_mcm_ﬁ SEM 98] 8l | .
Jeah plul weyshs FEO'S Friil (EHONN) 812Y D1iSEUOP-UGN [RUOHEN
.jo sfiueys sy} ©) anp /0107
ut ssybly sem 88) oy |
‘Bunse) [euoyippe
N0 PBLLED pue sa)lanh
o} pepuodsal sieaIo Moy L1e'nl VLA'EG aWBLIDS Yeuag xe} jounoa pue Buisnoy
U} JuswsAcaduE DanUUICD
pUB SICLS Jama) Biam 24al|
3 3
juad dad g1 -j4+ uByl JojEs.B NIy oy
a2; uj sebueyo Joj suoseoy LifaLog Zyioz wimex auein

$994 UOHEIMeY v xipuaddy

SO0 UDNBSRILSD

18



Ernst & Young LLP

Assurance | Tax | Transaction | Advisory

Www.ey. com/uk

The UK firm Emst & Young LLP is a limited labifity
partrership registerad m £ngland and Wates with
registered number OC300001 and is a member firm
of Emst & Young Global Lirnited

Ernst & Young LLP, T More London Place, Londan, SE1 2AF

@ Emst & Young LLP 2013. Published in the UK.
All rights reserved,

19

Ernst & Young [7



20



Ernst & Young LLP

H“HHH””HWHHHHHHHIHH!“;vgﬂERNST&YOUNG

19 Threefield Lane
Southampton SO14 3QB

Tei: 02380 382000
Fax: 02380 382001
www.ey.com/uk

Timothy Wheadon 17 December 2012
Chief Executive
Brackneli Forest Council
Easthampstead House Direct line: 07974 007332
Town Square
Bracknell
Berkshire
RG12 1AQ

Ref HT/BFC27723607

Email HThompson2@uk sy.com

Dear Tim

Annual Audit Fee 2012/13

We are writing to confirm the audit work that we propose to undertake for the 2012/13 financial year at
Bracknell Forest Council. The fee reflects the risk-based approach to audit planning set out in the Code
of Audit Practice and the work mandated by the Audit Commission for 2012/13. The audit fee covers
the:

B Audit of the financial statements;

»  Value for money conclusion; and

»  Whole of Government accounts.

Our fee has been set by the Audit Commission as part of the recent 5 year procurement exercise and
consequently is not liable to increase in that period without a change in scope.

Indicative audit fee

For 2012/13 the Audit Commission has set the scale fee for each audited body. The 2012/13 scale fee is
based on certain assumptions, including:

»  The overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly different
from that of the prior year;

»  We are able to place reliance on the work of internal audit to the maximum extent possible under
auditing standards;

»  The financial statements will be available to us in line with the agreed timetable;

¥  Working papers and records provided to us in support of the financial statements are of a good
quality and are provided in line with our agreed timetable; and

»  Prompt responses are provided to our draft reports.
Meeting these assumptions will help ensure the delivery of our audit at the indicative audit fee.
The indicative audit fee set out in the table below has initially been set at the scale fee level as the

overall level of risk in relation to the audit of the financial statements is not significantly different from that
of the prior year .

=
|&!}” A\ﬁi

\\f §'I The UK firm Ernst & Young LLP is a limited liability

\# ?*‘ partnership registered in England and Wales with

\\éé V; registered number OC300001 and is a member firm of
\\\ 4 Ernst & Young Global Limited. A list of members' names

Fa N 2 1 is avaitable for inspection at 1 More London Place,
London SE1 2AF, the firm's principal place of business

INVESTOR IN PEOPLE and registered office.



|

mHIHHHHHHH‘HHHHHHHH..,,.ﬂERNST&YOUNG

Indicative fee Planned fee Actual fee
2012/13 2011/12 2010/11

£ £ £
Total Code auditfee - 138,564 230,940 256,600
Certification of claims and returns* ) 48,600 60,000 77,500

*The indicative fee for 2012/13 and the planned fee for 2011/12 relate to the certification of grant claims and returns
for the years ended 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2012 respectively. The certification fees for 2010/11 are the
actual fees for the year ended 31 March 2011.

Any additional work that we may agree to undertake (outside of the Audit Code of Practice) will be
separately negotiated and agreed with you in advance.

Our audit plan for the audit of the financial statements will be issued in March 2013. This will detail the
significant financial statement risks identified, planned audit procedures to respond to those risks, and
any changes in fee. 1t will also set out the risks identified in relation to the value for money conclusion.
Should we need to make any significant amendments to the audit fee during the course of the audit, we
will discuss this in the first instance with the Borough Treasurer and, if necessary, prepare a report
outlining the reasons for the fee change for discussion with the Governance and Audit Committee.

Billing

The indicative audit fee will be billed in quarterly instalments of £46,791.

Audit team

The key members of the audit team for 2012/13 are

Helen Thompson

Director HThompson2@uk.ey.com Tel: 07974 007332
Catherine Morganti

Manager CMorganti@uk.ey.com Tel: 07779 576414
Rachel Cobley RCobley@uk.ev.com Tel: 07966 400980 -

Executive

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If at any time you would like to discuss
with us how our service to you could be improved, or if you are dissatisfied with the service you are
receiving, please contact me. If you prefer an alternative route, please contact Steve Varley, our
Managing Partner, 1 More London Place, London, SE1 2AF. We undertake to look into any complaint
carefully and promptly and to do all we can to explain the position to you. Should you remain dissatisfied
with any aspect of our service, you may of course take matters up with our professional institute.

Yours sincerely

Helen Thompson
Director

Ernst & Young LLP
United Kingdom

cC. Alan Nash, Borough Treasurer
Clir Alan Ward, Chair of the Governance and Audit Committee

22



Agenda ltem 6

TO: GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE

29 JANUARY 2013
TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT
(Borough Treasurer)

1 PURPOSE OF DECISION

1.1 To review the Treasury Management Report.

2 RECOMMENDATIONS

21 That the Committee review the Treasury Management Report prior to its
approval by Council.

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

3.1 The reasons for the recommendations are set out in the report.

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 The Code of Practice requires the Council’s annual Treasury Strategy to be
examined and reviewed by a responsible body. The Governance and Audit
Committee has been nominated by Council to be that body.

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5.1 The Local Government Act 2003 requires a local authority to “have regard to”
guidance issued by, or specified by, the Secretary of State. As such, the Council is
required to have regard to the Prudential Code and Code of Practice on Treasury
Management in the Public Sector, both issued by the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA).

52 Under the requirements of the Prudential Code, the Council must set Prudential
Indicators for the next three years to ensure that the Council’s capital investment
plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The attached Treasury Management
Report outlines the Council’s Prudential Indicators for 2013/14 to 2015/16 and sets
out the expected treasury operations for this period.

5.3 The Code of Practice recommends that a responsible body be nominated by the
Council and having examined and assessed the effectiveness of the treasury
management strategy and policies recommend them to Council. At its meeting on 2
March 2011 Council nominated the Governance and Audit Committee as the
responsible body.

54 The attached Treasury Management Report (annex A) was approved by the

Executive, as a part of the Council’s overall budget proposals, on 11 December
2012. The Executive requested that the Governance and Audit Committee review
each of the key elements. Following this review the Treasury Management Report
and associated documents will be presented to Council for approval on 29 February
2013, as a part of the overall budget package and resolution on the Council Tax for
2013/14.

23



5.5

5.6

5.7

5.8

5.9

Counterparty Selection

The Committee reviewed the 2012/13 half-yearly report in November 2012 and
included in that review was the recommendation that the Council should consider
adopting an amended approach to selecting the Counterparties used for
investments. The reasons behind this change were highlighted to the Committee
and can be best summarised as follows

e The Council maintains a low risk approach to counterparty selection and there
is no intention on diverging from this, however over recent years there has
been a shift in the reliance placed purely in credit-ratings on counterparty
selection.

¢ As aresult of the recent financial crisis and the sovereign creditworthiness
difficulties, almost all financial institutions, and indeed countries, have
experienced a substantial cut in their credit-ratings, almost to a level that
would render most counterparty criteria unsuitable for practical purposes.

o It is widely acknowledged that credit-ratings on their own are not sufficient in
capturing and evaluating the relative levels of risk attached to a counterparty.
The CIPFA code recommends that Councils do not place sole reliance on
credit-rating scores but use other techniques and financial analysis to evaluate
credit-worthiness.

¢ A widely-recognised additional indicator is the Credit Default Swap (CDS)
which is a marketable instrument whereby the seller will compensate the buyer
in the event of a loan default. However CDS are tradable and a huge market
exists ($25tn) and they are actively used to monitor how the market views the
credit risk of any entity for which a CDS is available.

¢ In light of the changing economic backdrop the Council’s Treasury
Management advisers (Sector) have developed a modelling approach utilising
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies supplemented with
overlays of credit watches and outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is
then combined with CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of
colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties.

The Committee agreed, after discussing the attributes of the recommended Sector
model, to support the amended approach to Counterparty selection and as such the
2013/14 Treasury Management Strategy, included within the 2013/14 Budget
Proposals, recommended such an approach.

At the time of the November meeting there was still considerable uncertainty in
global economic markets, with particular concern regarding the weaker Euro Zone
countries (Greece and to a lesser extent Spain and Italy) and the impending
American “Fiscal Cliff” which alluded to the difficult situation facing the United States
administration in agreeing a fiscal budget by the end of December 2012. Given
these continuing risks, the Sector Model maintained the approach adopted in
September 2011 to limit for all but a few exceptions maximum durations of 3
months.

The Council’'s own Investment Criteria limits all investments to 364 days and £7m in
any one institution, but operationally the majority of maturities are limited to 3
months, and as such was broadly in step with the Sector model.

However these temporary restrictions within in the Sector Model are to be lifted, and

with the recommended full adoption of the Model in 2013/14 it is appropriate that the
reasons behind this are explained to the Committee. It should be made clear that

24



5.10

5.1

5.12

5.13

5.14

there will be no changes made to the underlying Treasury Management Strategy of
the Council. Maturities will not extend beyond 364 days, however operationally, if
cash flow permits it, investments can be extended beyond 3 months for financial
institutions meeting the strict credit criteria adhered to by the Council.

Since the impositions to the temporary revisions Sector have maintained a constant
oversight of market conditions and believe that given the underlying improvements
in these as outlined below, the need for a more stringent limit on duration is no
longer necessary. This does not mean that problems within financial markets are
fully resolved; however it is a reflection that some of the excess fears surrounding
the continued existence of the Eurozone have subsided and that liquidity in financial
markets is now significantly improved.

There have been a number of clear reasons for the marked improvement in financial
markets as follows:

e The decision by the European Central Bank to announce unlimited support for
sovereigns subject to stringent requirements, via its Outright Monetary
Transaction programme, who request external aid. Although no country has,
as yet, sought help, just the offer of such backing has seen yields on
peripheral government bonds fall back materially in the second half of 2012.

e There were two major UK funding announcements in 2012. The first was the
Extended Collateral Term Repo facility which provided institutions, via regular
auctions, access to 6 month funding at Bank Rate plus 0.25%. The second
was the Funding for Lending scheme which also allowed financial institutions
access to low cost funding for an extended period.

e The partial success in the US of averting the “fiscal cliff’ via an agreement on
tax changes in the opening moments of 2013.

However the outlook for 2013 remains mixed at best. The UK is expected to
struggle to generate positive growth and this may lead one or more of the main
rating agencies to cut our “AAA” sovereign rating. Although evidence from others
who have been cut before from AAA would suggest that the impact may not be
severe, it may add to market nervousness. In addition, the US fiscal situation is far
from resolved and the final key element of market concern will remain the Eurozone.
Fresh issues in Spain and Greece will always have the ability to raise concerns as
well.

However the improvement in market metrics seen since the second half of 2012 and
the more recent stability are enough for Sector to lift the temporary suggested
investment cap put in place in September 2011 within its Model realising the
potential for the Council to extend maturities over the coming months. However, this
is a sign of markedly improved stability, not a signal that the ills of the financial crisis
are gone. Conditions will likely remain volatile for some time, but within more
reasoned levels than seen previously.

Understanding Credit Ratings

The Committee asked, at its meeting in November, for an explanation of the various
Credit Ratings used by the Council in its Counterparty selection. The Sector Model
uses a combination of all three of the main Credit Ratings Agencies who each use
slightly different terminology. In order to examine and explain the ratings used by
the Council, this summary focuses on those used by Fitch. A more comprehensive
description of each category and its ratings is given in Annex B

25



Sovereign Credit Rating

Fitch assigns a long term credit rating to the country in which the

financial institution being rated is domiciled. This credit rating assesses the
economic health of the country including its ability to service its debt and also
its capacity to support the banking system in that country should financial
support be required. The assessment follows the normal long term rating
scale, the highest rating being AAA with anything below BBB being non
investment grade i.e. “junk bond status”. The UK has a AAA rating and the
Council’s policy is to invest only in UK institutions.

International Long - Term Credit Ratings

Long - term credit ratings are an attempt to assess the ongoing stability of

an institution’s prospective financial condition given such factors as sensitivity
to fluctuations in market conditions and the capacity for maintaining profitability
or absorbing losses in a difficult operating environment. Traditionally they look
beyond a 12 month horizon. Investment grade ratings range from AAA to BBB,
the full range is given in Annex B

The minimum rating that BFC will use is A- which is mid range in the ratings
referred to above. A ratings denote a low expectation of credit risk. The
capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is considered strong.

International Short - Term Credit Ratings

A short - term rating has a timescale of less than 12 months for most
obligations and thus places greater emphasis on the liquidity necessary to
meet financial commitments in a timely manner. The minimum rating that BFC
will use is F1. This indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of
financial commitments. The ratings range from F1 through to D.

Viability Ratings

Viability ratings are a relatively new introduction by Fitch and effectively
replace the old Individual ratings. The viability rating represents the capacity of
a bank to maintain ongoing operations and to avoid failure in the absence of
external e.g. Governmental support , Thus, viability ratings permit an
evaluation separate from any consideration of outside support. The Council’s
old minimum individual rating was B/C. The nearest equivalent Viability rating
is BB+ which denotes moderate but acceptable prospects for ongoing viability.
The bank’s fundamentals are adequate such that there is a low risk that it
would have to rely on extraordinary support to avoid default. However, adverse
business or economic conditions are more likely to impair this capacity rather
than say an A rating.

Support Indicator

This indicator gives an indication as to how much external support,
predominately from the state, a bank could expect to receive if it were to run
into difficulties. The range is from 1 to 5 with 1 being the highest degree of
support and 5 the lowest. 1 is assigned only to banks for which there is an
extremely high probability of external support e.g. Barclays Bank in the UK.
The potential provider of support is very highly rated in its own right and has a
very high propensity to support the bank in question e.g. the UK Government
which is rated AAA. BFC will invest in institutions with a Support Indicator in
the range of 1 to 3.

26



Level of Investments

Investments are governed by the level of cash available to the Council, those
institutions that meet the Council’s current investment criteria and the cash-flow
requirements of the Council. The table below indicates the investments held on the

18™ January 2013.

Investment Maturity Amount (£) Average Rate
(%)
Money Market Funds
Prime Rate 1 Day 6,979,000 0.46
Ignis 1 Day 6,973,100 0.45
Golman Sachs 1 Day 6,981,000 0.38
RBS 1 Day 6,835,000 0.33
Black Rock 1 Day 1,075,000 0.31
28,843,100
Fixed Term Deposits
RBS 31/01/2013 3,500,000 1.85
Lloyds 31/01/2013 3,500,000 2.50
Nationwide 07/02/2013 3,500,000 0.83
Nationwide 19/04/2013 3,500,000 0.45
RBS 17/05/2013 3,500,000 1.06
Lloyds 16/08/2013 3,500,000 2.85
21,000,000
Total Investments 49,843,100

27




6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

7.1

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor
None.

Borough Treasurer
The financial implications are contained within the report.

Equalities Impact Assessment
None.

Strategic Risk Management Issues
The Treasury Management Report deals directly with the strategic management of
risk associated with the Council’s treasury management activities

CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

The Overview & Scrutiny Commission was consulted on the budget proposals,
including the Treasury Management Strategy, in December. The timetable for the
approval of the 2013/14 Budget is as follows

Executive agree proposals as basis for consultation 11 December 2012

Consultation period 12 December 2012 -
22 January 2013

Executive considers representations made and 13 February 2013

recommends budget.

Council considers Executive budget proposals 27 February 2013

Background Papers

None

Contact for further information

Alan Nash -01344 352180
alan.nash@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Calvin Orr— 01344 352125
calvin.orr@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

28



1.1

1.2

Annex A

TREASURY MANAGEMENT REPORT

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to “have regard to” the
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three years to ensure
that the Council’s capital investment plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable.

This report outlines the Council’s prudential indicators for 2013/14 — 2015/16 and
sets out the expected treasury operations for this period. It fulfils four key legislative
requirements:

e The reporting of the prudential indicators setting out the expected capital
activities at Annex A(i) (as required by the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities).

e The Council’'s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy at Annex A(ii),
which sets out how the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue
each year (as required by Regulation under the Local Government and
Public Involvement in Health Act 2007);

e The Treasury Management Strategy Statement which sets out how the
Council’s treasury service will support the capital decisions taken above, the
day to day treasury management and the limitations on activity through
treasury prudential indicators. The key indicator is the Authorised Limit, the
maximum amount of debt the Council could afford in the short term, but
which would not be sustainable in the longer term. This is the Affordable
Borrowing Limit required by s3 of the Local Government Act 2003 and shown
at Annex A(iii);

e The Annual Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for
choosing investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of loss.
This strategy is in accordance with the CLG Investment Guidance and is
shown in Annex A(iv).

29



Annex A(i)

The Capital Prudential Indicators 2013/14 — 2015/16

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to adopt the CIPFA Prudential
Code and produce prudential indicators. Each indicator either summarises the
expected capital activity or introduces limits upon that activity, and reflects the
outcome of the Council’s underlying capital appraisal systems.

Within this overall prudential framework there is an impact on the Council’s treasury
management activity — as it will directly impact on borrowing or investment activity
and as such the Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14 to 2015/16
complements these indicators. Some of the prudential indicators are shown in the
treasury management strategy to aid understanding.

The Capital Expenditure Plans

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are summarised below and this forms the
first of the prudential indicators. A certain level of capital expenditure is grant
supported by the Government; any decisions by the Council to spend above this level
will be considered unsupported capital expenditure. This unsupported capital
expenditure needs to have regard to:

Service objectives (e.g. strategic planning);

Stewardship of assets (e.g. asset management planning);

Value for money (e.g. option appraisal);

Prudence and sustainability (e.g. implications for external borrowing
and whole life costing);

e Affordability (e.g. implications for the council tax);

e Practicality (e.g. the achievability of the forward plan).

The revenue consequences of capital expenditure, particularly the unsupported
capital expenditure, will need to be paid for from the Council’s own resources.

This capital expenditure can be paid for immediately (by applying capital resources
such as capital receipts, capital grants etc., or revenue resources), but if these
resources are insufficient any residual capital expenditure will add to the Council’s
borrowing need.

The key risks to the plans are that the level of Government support has been
estimated and is therefore maybe subject to change. Similarly some estimates for
other sources of funding, such as capital receipts, may also be subject to change
over this timescale. For instance anticipated asset sales may be postponed due to
the impact of the recession on the property market, similarly the proceeds from the
Right-to-Buy sharing agreement with Bracknell Forest Homes will also be impacted
on by the wider economy.

30



Annex A(i)

The Council is asked to approve the summary capital expenditure projections below.
This forms the first prudential indicator:

Capital Expenditure 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16

Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000 £000 £000

Capital Expenditure 23,462 19,242 12,939

Financed by:

Capital receipts 5,000 3,000 3,000

Capital grants & 11,272 10,239 6,008

Contributions

Revenue 1,100 0 0

Net financing need 6,090 6,003 3,931

for the year

The Council’s Borrowing Need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total outstanding capital expenditure which has not yet
been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a measure of
the Council’'s underlying borrowing need. The capital expenditure above which has
not immediately been paid for will increase the CFR. Due to the nature of some of
the capital expenditure identified above (ie grant), an element will be immediately
impaired or will not qualify as capital expenditure for CFR purposes. As such the net
financing figure above may differ from that used in the CFR calculation.

The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General Fund
capital spend each year through a revenue charge (the Minimum Revenue Provision
- MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake additional voluntary payments (VRP).
No additional voluntary payments are planned.

The Council is asked to approve the CFR projections below:

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£000 £000 £000
Capital Financing Requirement
Total CFR 55,413 59,641 61,691
Movement in CFR 5,009 4,244 2,066
Movement in CFR represented b
Net financing need 6,620 6,003 3,931
for CFR purposes #
Less MRP/VRP and -1,612 -1,759 -1,865
other financing
movements
Movement in CFR 5,009 4,244 2,066

# 2013/14 includes impact of carry-forward from 2012/13

CLG Regulations have been issued which require full Council to approve an MRP
Statement in advance of each year. The Council is recommended to approve the
MRP Statement attached in Annex A(ii)

31



Annex A(i)

Affordability Prudential Indicators

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators, but within this framework prudential indicators are required to assess the
affordability of the capital investment plans. These provide an indication of the
impact of the capital investment plans on the Council’s overall finances. The Council
is asked to approve the following indicators:

Estimates of the ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term
obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue stream.

2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Ratio -0.56% +0.07% +0.26%

The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the proposals in
the Capital Programme Budget report.

Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the Council Tax

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to the
three year capital programme compared to the Council’'s existing approved
commitments and current plans. The assumptions are based on the budget, but will
invariably include some estimates, such as the level of Government support, which
are not published over a three year period.

Forward Forward Forward
Projection | Projection | Projection
2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Council Tax - Band D £1.35 £1.32 £1.70

32




Annex A(ii)

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy Statement

The concept of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) was introduced when the
Local Government Capital Finance System was changed on 1 April 1990. This
required local authorities to assess their outstanding debt and to make an annual
charge to the General Fund of 4% of the General Fund Debt.

These regulations have now been amended and Department for Local Government &
Communities (DCLG) issued new regulations in 2008 which require a local authority
to calculate for the current financial year an amount of MRP which it considers
“prudent”. The broad aim of a prudent provision is to ensure that debt is repaid over
a period that is reasonably commensurate with that over which the capital
expenditure provides benefits or in the case of borrowing supported by government,
reasonably commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of the grant.
The Council can choose to charge more than the minimum.

It is a requirement of these new regulations that full Council approve an annual MRP
Statement of its policy on making MRP.

As capital expenditure is incurred which cannot be immediately financed through
capital receipts or grant the Council’s borrowing need (its Capital Financing
Requirement) will be positive and an MRP will be required. In practice the Council is
unlikely to need to borrow externally in the medium term as it has sufficient revenue
investments, arising from the Council’s reserves and balances to cover this
expenditure. However it will still need to make a charge to revenue for this “internal
borrowing”.

The move to International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) in local government
is expected to bring more PFl schemes on balance sheet and to result in some
leases (or parts of leases) being reclassified as finance lease instead of operating
leases. These contracts would become subject to the requirement to provide MRP.
IFRS requires these changes to be accounted for retrospectively. With the result that
an element of the rental or service charge payable in previous years will be taken to
the balance sheet to reduce the liability. On its own this change would result in a one-
off increase to the capital financing requirement, and an equal increase in revenue
account balances. This is not seen as a prudent course of action and as such the
guidance recommends the inclusion in the annual MRP charge of an amount equal to
the amount that has been taken to the balance sheet to reduce the liability, including
the retrospective element in the first year.

The guidance sets out four options for making MRP. It envisages that authorities can
distinguish between borrowing that is “supported” (through the RSG system) and
other “unsupported or prudential” borrowing. The first two methods should only be
used for “supported” borrowing

1) The regulatory method. This involves following the existing practice outlined
in the former DCLG regulation. For the Council this is essentially the same as
the CFR method.

2) The CFR Method. This involves setting the MRP equal to 4% of the Capital
Financing Requirement at the end of the preceding year.

3) The Asset Life Method. This method requires MRP to be charged over the
asset life. The asset life is determined in the year MRP commences and is
not changed. MRP will not be charged until the asset becomes operational.

33



Annex A(ii)

Therefore it will be possible to take an MRP holiday for those assets in
construction.

4) The Depreciation Method. This requires the MRP to equal the actual
depreciation based on standard accounting procedures.

Recommended Policy

In setting the 2013/14 budget and beyond the following policy is recommended:

1) There will be a presumption that capital receipts will be allocated to the
appropriate assets in relation to the constraints of the medium term financial
strategy.

2) The Council will identify the level of “supported borrowing” and use the CFR
Method i.e. 4% of this figure as part of the MRP charge. The supported
borrowing will be used in full irrespective of the service block the funding was
allocated in the grant settlement and will also be allocated to the appropriate
assets in relation to the constraints of the medium term financial strategy. For
the remaining “unsupported borrowing” the Council will use the asset life
method.

The actual charge made in the year will be based on applying the above policy to the

previous year’s actual capital expenditure and funding decisions. Therefore the
2013/14 charge will be based on 2012/13 capital out-turn.

34



Annex A(iii)

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT

The Treasury Management service is an important part of the overall financial
management of the Council’s affairs. The prudential indicators in Annex A(i) consider
the affordability and impact of capital expenditure decisions, and set out the Council’s
overall capital framework. The Treasury Management service considers the effective
funding of these decisions. Together they form part of the process which ensures the
Council meets its balanced budget requirement under the Local Government Finance
Act 1992.

The Council’s treasury activities are strictly regulated by statutory requirements and a
professional code of practice - 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury Management in Public
Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance Notes (“the CIPFA TM
Code”). This Council adopted the Code of Practice on Treasury Management in
March 2002, and will adopt the revised Code.

As a result of adopting the Code the Council also adopted a Treasury Policy
Statement. This adoption is the requirement of one of the prudential indicators.

The Code of Practice requires an annual strategy to be reported to Council outlining
the expected treasury activity for the forthcoming 3 years. A key requirement of this
report is to explain both the risks, and the management of the risks, associated with
the treasury service. A further treasury report is produced after the year-end to
report on actual activity for the year, and a new requirement of the revision of the
Code of Practice is that there is a mid-year monitoring report.

This strategy covers:

The Council’s debt and investment projections;

The Council’s estimates and limits on future debt levels;
The expected movement in interest rates;

The Council’s borrowing and investment strategies;
Treasury performance indicators;

Specific limits on treasury activities;

Debt and Investment Projections 2013/15 — 2015/16

The borrowing requirement comprises the expected movement in the CFR and any
maturing debt which will need to be re-financed. The Council does not anticipate any
external borrowing over 2013/14, but projects that it may require to borrow externally
from 2014/15 onwards, however the timing of this very much depends on progress
made in delivering on the Capital Programme in 2013/14 and the level of capital
receipts achieved in the next 18 months. As such there is some uncertainty as to
when exactly the Council will be required to undertake borrowing. The table below
highlights the expected change in investment balances.

£000 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Estimated | Estimated | Estimated

External Debt

Debt at 31 March | 0 | 5,000 | 12,000
Investments
Investments at 31 March | 5,000 | 0,000 | 0

35



Annex A(iii)

Limits to Borrowing Activity

Within the prudential indicators there are a number of key indicators to ensure the
Council operates its activities within well defined limits. For the first of these the
Council needs to ensure that its total borrowing net of any investments, does not,
except in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the
estimates of any additional CFR for 2013/14 and the following two financial years.
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but ensures
that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.

The Borough Treasurer reports that the Council has complied with this prudential

indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This

view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the proposals in
this budget report.

The Authorised Limit for External Debt

A further key prudential indicator represents a control on the overall level of
borrowing. This represents a limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this
limit needs to be set or revised by full Council. It reflects the level of external debt
which, while not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in
the longer term.

This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act
2003. The Government retains an option to control either the total of all councils’
plans, or those of a specific council, although no control has yet been exercised.

The Council is asked to approve the following Authorised Limit:

Authorised limit £000 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Estimate Estimate Estimate

Borrowing 45,000 48,000 51,000

Other long term 16,000 16,000 16,000

liabilities

Total 61,000 64,000 67,000

Operational Boundary for External Debt

The Authority is also recommended to approve the Operational Boundary for external
debt for the same period. The proposed Operational Boundary is based on the same
estimates as the Authorised Limit but reflects directly the estimate of the most likely
but not worst case scenario, without the additional headroom included within the
Authorised Limit to allow for unusual cash movements.

Operational 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16
Boundary £m Estimate Estimate Estimate
Borrowing 40,000 44,000 47,000
Other long term 16,000 16,000 16,000
liabilities

Total 56,000 60,000 63,000

Borrowing in advance of need.

The Borough Treasurer may do this under delegated power where, for instance, a
sharp rise in interest rates is expected, and so borrowing early at fixed interest rates
will be economically beneficial or meet budgetary constraints. Whilst the Borough

36



Annex A(iii)

Treasurer will adopt a cautious approach to any such borrowing, where there is a
clear business case for doing so borrowing may be undertaken to fund the approved
capital programme or to fund future debt maturities. Risks associated with any
advance borrowing activity will be subject to appraisal in advance and subsequent
reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting mechanism. However given the
finely balanced projected position in 2014/15 any borrowing in advance of need will
be kept under review on a monthly basis.

Expected Movement in Interest Rates

The Council has appointed Sector as its treasury advisor and part of their service is
to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest rates. The following table gives
the Sector central view on the future levels of the Bank Rate

Medium-Term Rate Estimates (averages)

Annual Bank PWLB Rates*
Average % Rate
5 year 25 year 50 year

Dec 2012 0.50 1.50 3.70 3.90
Mar 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00
June 2013 0.50 1.50 3.80 4.00
Sept 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00
Dec 2013 0.50 1.60 3.80 4.00
March 2014 0.50 1.70 3.90 4.10
June 2014 0.50 1.70 3.70 4.10
Sept 2014 0.50 1.80 4.00 4.20
Dec 2014 0.50 2.00 4.10 4.30
March 2015 0.75 2.20 4.30 4.50

* Borrowing Rates

After a very uncertain and economically challenging start to the year, there are the
initial signs that economic growth may have returned after three quarters of
recession. However the normal economic indicators used to evaluate the financial
health of the country have been impacted by a range of unique circumstances,
including the Queen’s Jubilee and associated additional bank holidays followed
closely by the London 2012 Olympics, which combined with the climatic challenges
faced by the country this summer have clouded many of the economic forecasts.

3" quarter GDP growth was positive for the first quarter in a year, and both industrial
production and the overall trade deficit have posted some encouraging numbers.
This return to growth has also been supported by a continuing recovery in the jobs
market whilst pay growth has remained modest.

Inflation has struggled to make further downward progress in the last quarter, and
whilst inflation should continue to drop to around 2% in the latter half of this year,
further falls over the remaining part of the year look unlikely.

As a result of the above, GDP posted a healthy quarterly rise of 1% in Quarter 3,
however this is unlikely to contribute enough to generate positive growth for the year
as whole and as such 2012 is likely to be seen as adding to the worst and slowest
recovery from recession of any of the five recessions since 1930.

There remain huge uncertainties in economic forecasts due to the following major
difficulties:

37



Annex A(iii)

o the impact of the Euro-zone crisis on financial markets and the
banking sector

o the impact of the UK Government’s austerity plan on confidence and
growth

e Monetary policy action failing to stimulate growth in western
economies

e the potential for weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading
partners — the EU and the US

The overall balance of risks remains weighted to the downside. Given the weak
outlook for economic growth, the prospect for any interest rate changes before the
end of 2014 are very limited.

Borrowing Strategy 2013/14

Given the level of current investments, the Council does not envisage any long-term
borrowing in 2013/14 although the Authorised Limit for External Debt has been set to
enable the Council to manage its cash flow effectively through the use of temporary
borrowing, in the unlikely event that this should be necessary.

38



Annex A(iv)

Investment Strategy 2013/14 — 2015/16

Investment Policy

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).

Key Objectives

The Council’s investment strategy primary objectives are safeguarding the re-
payment of the principal and interest of its investments on time first and ensuring
adequate liquidity second — the investment return being a third objective. Following
the economic background outlined in the Treasury Management Strategy, the current
investment climate has one over-riding risk consideration that of counterparty
security risk. As a result of these underlying concerns officers are implementing an
operational investment strategy which maintains the tightened controls already in
place in the approved investment strategy.

Investment Counterparty Selection Criteria

The primary principle governing the Council’s investment criteria is the security of its
investments, although the yield or return on the investment is also a key
consideration.

After this main principle the Council will ensure:

e It maintains a policy covering both the categories of investment types it
will invest in, criteria for choosing investment counterparties with
adequate security, and monitoring their security. This is set out in the
Specified and Non-Specified investment sections below.

e |t has sufficient liquidity in its investments. For this purpose it will set out
procedures for determining the maximum periods for which funds may
prudently be committed. These procedures also apply to the Council’s
prudential indicators covering the maximum principal sums invested.

In accordance with the Investment Guidance, the Council will, in considering the
security of proposed investments, follow different procedures according to which of
two categories, Specified or Unspecified, the proposed investment falls into.

Specified Investments offer high security and high liquidity and are:

¢ Denominated, paid and repaid in sterling;

¢ Not long term investments, i.e. they are due to be repaid within 12
months of the date on which the investment was made;

+ Not defined as capital expenditure; and

¢ Are made with a body or in an investment scheme which has been
awarded a high credit rating by a credit rating agency or are made
with the UK Government or a Local Authority in England, Wales,
Scotland or Northern Ireland.

Non-Specified Investments are those which do not meet the definition of Specified
Investments.

The authority employs a counterparty selection criteria approved annually by Council
that sets out the financial institutions that the organisation can deposit funds with.
The key criteria used are the credit ratings supplied by the three main credit rating
agencies. The Council maintains a low risk approach to counterparty selection and
there is no intention on diverging from this, however over recent years there has

39



Annex A(iv)

been a shift in the reliance placed purely in credit-ratings on counterparty selection.
As such it is considered appropriate to review the current methodology and to adopt
a more sophisticated model of counterparty selection.

As a result of the financial crisis following the Lehman’s collapse and the recent
sovereign credit-worthiness difficulties, almost all financial institutions, and indeed
countries, have experienced a substantial cut in their credit-ratings. The Council’s
2012/13 criteria limits investments in only two UK financial institutions willing to deal
in the size of transactions available to the Council. This list was supplemented in
2011/12 with the inclusion of part-nationalised banks, which whilst not meeting the
Council’s strict credit-rating criteria are seen to offer low levels of risk given the
support they are afforded through the UK Government. Whilst such a criteria
mitigates a particular level of risk, it increases the risk associated with lack of
diversification, resulting in a much higher weighting in low-yielding AAA rated
overnight deposits.

In addition it has been widely acknowledged that credit-ratings on their own are not
sufficient in capturing and evaluating the relative levels of risk attached to a single
counterparty. The CIPFA code recommends that Councils do not place sole reliance
on credit-rating scores but use other techniques and financial analysis to evaluate
credit-worthiness. There is a wide range of such information, much of which is
provided by the Council’'s Treasury Management advisers.

One such technique is the use of a Credit Default Swap (CDS) which is a marketable
instrument or agreement whereby the seller of the CDS will compensate the buyer in
the event of a loan default. In simple terms the buyer of the CDS makes a payment to
the seller and in exchange receives a payoff if the company defaults. However CDS
are tradable and a huge market exists ($25tn) and they are actively used to monitor
how the market views the credit risk of any entity for which a CDS is available. On
their own, the risk reflected by the level of a CDS is complex to evaluate however
they can be used in tracking their relative movement and more importantly their
movement against an index of industry peers.

In light of the changing economic backdrop, the shift in the relative importance of
credit-ratings and the sector’s requirement for a more sophisticated approach to
counterparty selection, the Council’s Treasury Management advisers have developed
a modelling approach utilising credit ratings from the three main credit rating
agencies supplemented with overlays of credit watches and outlooks in a weighted
scoring system which is then combined with CDS spreads for which the end product
is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the relative creditworthiness of
counterparties. This service uses a wider array of information than just primary
ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system does not give undue
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

The minimum credit rating that the Council will use will be a short term rating of F1
and a long term rating of A-, with Viability ratings of BB+ and a Support rating of 3.
The existing criteria differs only in the Support Rating where the current limit is 2 and
as such the recommended change in criteria represents a slight increase in risk.

The definition as provided by Fitch for a support level 2 compared to a support level 3
is documented below;

e Support Level 2: A bank for which there is a high probability of external
support. The potential provider of support is highly rated in its own right
and has a high propensity to provide support to the bank in question.

e Support Level 3: A bank for which there is a moderate probability of
support because of uncertainties about the ability or propensity of the
potential provider of support to do so.

40



Annex A(iv)

The Support Rating is an assessment of a potential supporter’s propensity to support
a bank and of its ability to support it and as such does not assess the intrinsic credit
quality of a bank, but rather communicates the agency’s judgement on whether the
bank would receive support should this become necessary. Support ratings have
been significantly impacted by both the large number of sovereign rating cuts and the
acceptance that sovereign nations will be unable to support all banks should the
global economic conditions deteriorate substantially.

However this minor lowering of the support level is offset to a large extent through
the additional use of CDS spreads which adds an additional level of risk evaluation
not currently used by the Council. All credit ratings will be monitored weekly and the
Council will be alerted to changes in ratings through the use of its adviser’s
creditworthiness service. Furthermore sole reliance will not be placed on the use of
this external service. In addition the Council will also use market data and information
on government support for banks and the credit ratings of that government support.

The Council’s investment criteria will continue to limit deposits in only UK banks, up
to a limit of £7m, and whilst it will continue to limit investments to less than 1Year it
will make use of the more sophisticated model provided by its advisers to limit
individual institutions by duration.

The suggested adoption of this new model has many positive attributes; it broadly
maintains the Council’s risk exposure and explicitly identifies a clear list of approved
counterparties. However a major benefit of this sophisticated model is that it provides
a robust and methodical approach to the quantification of risk through both credit-
ratings and market-generated risk assessment that can be clearly followed and
communicated.

In addition to the criteria above part nationalised UK Banks (Lloyds Bank and Royal
Bank of Scotland) will also be included within the Council’s counterparty list. These
banks can be included if they continue to be part nationalised or they meet the
ratings above. The Council will also continue to invest in the following highly rated
investment instruments

¢ Money Market Funds — AAA Rating Sterling Denominated

¢ UK Government (including gilts and Debt Management Account
Deposit Facility (DMADF))

¢ UK Local Authorities

Country and sector considerations.

Due care will be taken to consider the country, group and sector exposure of the
Council’s investments. The current investment strategy limits all investments to UK
Banks and Building Societies.

41



Annex A(iv)

Time and Monetary Limits applying to Investments.

The maximum time and monetary limits for institutions on the Council’s Counterparty
List are as follows and will be supplemented on an individual institutional basis by the
SECTOR criteria model referred to above (the monetary limits will cover both
Specified and Non-Specified Investments):

Money Limit Time Limit
UK Banks and Building £7m 364 days
Societies
Money Market Funds £7m n/a
UK Government unlimited 364 days
UK Local Authorities £7m 364 days

The proposed criteria for Specified and Non-Specified investments are attached
to this document.

In the normal course of the council’s cash flow operations it is expected that both
Specified and Non-specified investments will be utilised for the control of liquidity as
both categories allow for short term investments.

The use of longer term instruments (greater than one year from inception to
repayment) will fall in the Non-specified investment category. These instruments will
only be used where the Council’s liquidity requirements are safeguarded however the
current investment limits for 2013/14 restrain all investments to less than 1 year. Any
amendment to this strategy will require the credit-criteria to be amended to include a
long-term rating. This will be addressed through the formal approval by Council of a
revised Treasury Management Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy.

Economic Investment Considerations

Investments will be made with reference to the core balance and cash flow
requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates. The UK Bank Rate is
forecast to remain unmoved through to late 2014. However, should the pace of
growth pick up more than expected there could be upside risk, particularly if Bank of
England inflation forecasts for two years ahead exceed the 2% inflation target.

The criteria for choosing counterparties set out above provide a sound approach to
investment in “normal” market circumstances. Whilst Members are asked to approve
this base criteria above, under the exceptional current market conditions the Borough
Treasurer may temporarily restrict further investment activity to those counterparties
considered of higher credit quality than the minimum criteria set out for approval.
These restrictions will remain in place until the banking system returns to “normal”
conditions. Similarly the time periods for investments will be restricted.

Examples of these restrictions would be the greater use of the Debt Management
Deposit Account Facility (a Government body which accepts local authority deposits),
Money Market Funds, and strongly rated institutions. The credit criteria have been
amended to reflect these facilities.

42



Annex A(iv)

Icelandic Bank Investments
The Council had deposited £5m in Icelandic Banks at the time of the collapse of the
Icelandic banking system, being £2m with Heritable Bank and £3m with Glitnir Bank.

Heritable Bank

Heritable Bank was put into administration in the UK. The receiver (Ernst & Young)
has followed a strategy of managing the outstanding debts of the bank (mostly
mortgages) and paying a dividend every 6 months to the creditors as monies are
recovered. To date the Council has received £1,530,379, the total claim admitted by
the Council was for £2,052,490 (being £2m principal and interest of £52,490). The
total recovered represents 75 pence in the pound. The administrator believes the
final recovery amount to be in the region of 86 to 90 pence in the pound, however no
time scale has been proposed for the final recovery. At 86p/£ the total recovery
would be £1.765m

Glitnir Bank

The administration of Glitnir has been undertaken in Iceland and has been
significantly more complex than that associated with Heritable. However, following
the Icelandic Supreme Court’s decision in December 2011 to recognise the Council
as a priority creditor, the Winding-Up-Board undertook the process of distributing
deposits to creditors.

The total owed to the Council amounts to £3,192,371 (being £3m principal and
£192,371 interest). However at the date of administration the amount due was
converted into Icelandic Krona at the existing exchange rate — amounting to some
609,998,348Kr. This has been used as the amount to be redistributed in all future
decisions by the Bank’s Winding-Up-Board.

The recovery has been complicated by current Icelandic legislation covering currency
transactions and the fact that the Bank held deposits in a wide variety of currencies.
The result of this has been that approximately 80% of the Council’s deposit was paid
to the Council in a basket of currencies on the 14th March 2012. Once these had
been exchanged into Sterling, the Council received a total of £2,521,455. This leaves
an outstanding balance of 116,387,685Kr (£450,000 approx) which the bank is
currently holding in an escrow account. Unexpectedly, on the 13th March, the
Icelandic Parliament enacted further Currency Control legislation covering the
movement and exchange of Icelandic Krona and all other foreign currencies.
Fortunately this did not impact on the distribution on the 14th March 2012, however it
will impact on the monies held in the escrow account. We are currently working
alongside our legal representatives and the LGA to facilitate the recovery of these
monies as efficiently and effectively as possible. The final value of this amount is
uncertain given the currency controls and the weakness of the Icelandic currency at
present.

Sensitivity to Interest Rate Movements

Future Council accounts will be required to disclose the impact of risks on the
Council’s treasury management activity. Whilst most of the risks facing the treasury
management service are addressed elsewhere in this report (credit risk, liquidity risk,
market risk, maturity profile risk), the impact of interest rate risk is discussed but not
quantified. The table below highlights the estimated impact of a 1% change in
interest rates to the estimated treasury management income for next year. That
element of the investment portfolio which is of a longer term, fixed interest rate nature
will not be affected by interest rate changes.

43



Annex A(iv)

2013/14 2014/15
Estimated Estimated
+1% -1%
Revenue Budgets £000 £000
Investment income +225 -225

Treasury Management Limits on Activity

There are four further treasury activity limits, which were previously prudential

indicators. The purpose of these are to contain the activity of the treasury function
within certain limits, thereby managing risk and reducing the impact of an adverse
movement in interest rates. However if these are set to be too restrictive they will
impair the opportunities to reduce costs/improve performance. The indicators are:

Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure — This identifies a maximum
limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position net of

investments

Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure — Similar to the previous indicator
this covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates.

Maturity structures of borrowing — These gross limits are set to reduce the
Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing, and
are required for upper and lower limits.

Total principal funds invested for greater than 364 days — These limits are set
with regard to the Council’s liquidity requirements and to reduce the need for
early sale of an investment, and are based on the availability of funds after
each year-end.

The Council is asked to approve the limits:

| 2013/14 | 2014/15 | 2015/16
Interest rate Exposures
Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest £40m £40m £41m
rates based on net debt
Limits on variable interest £16m £20m £21m
rates based on net debt

Maturity Structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2013/14

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 100%
12 months to 2 years 0% 0%
2 years to 5 years 0% 0%
5 years to 10 years 0% 0%
10 years and above 0% 0%
Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days
Principal sums invested > £m £m £m
364 days 0 0 0

Performance Indicators
The Code of Practice on Treasury Management requires the Council to set
performance indicators to assess the adequacy of the treasury function over the
year. These are distinct historic indicators, as opposed to the prudential indicators,
which are predominantly forward looking. For 2013/14 the Council does not expect
to enter into any borrowing and as such the relevant benchmark will relate only to




Annex A(iv)

investments and will be the “7 Day LIBID Rate”. The results of these indicators will be
reported in the Treasury Annual Report.

Treasury Management Advisers

The Council uses Sector as its treasury management consultants. The Council
recognises that responsibility for treasury management decision remains with the
organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not placed upon our
external service providers.

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources.
The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which
their value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subject to
regular review.

Member and Officer Training

The increased Member consideration of treasury management matters and the need
to ensure officers dealing with treasury management are trained and kept up to date
requires a suitable training process for Members and officers. Following the
nomination of the Governance and Audit Committee to examine and assess the
effectiveness of the Treasury Management Strategy and Policies, initial training was
provided and additional training was given to the Committee in 2012. Officer training
is carried out in accordance with best practice and outlined in TMP 10 Training and
Qualifications to ensure that all staff involved in the Treasury Management function
are fully equipped to undertake the duties and responsibilities allocated to them

45



wey} yim

pealbe sisleweled pue sauljepinb

ay} 03 109([qns Ajuo siebeuew

puny [eussixe Aq pasn aq 0]
skeQ y9¢ pPaXdeq-jA0D) SOA ON shke@ #9¢ 0} dn : syj19
aseyaind
0} JoLid palinbai Juswebue.lie [eIpojsny

way} ypm
paaibe sisloweled pue sauljepinb 'skeq $9¢ 0} dn : (sepalo0s
ay} 0} 108lqns Ajuo siebeuew 18I 40L03S 98S Buipjing pue s)ueq) siexe} yisodap pajel
skeq y9¢ puny jeulaixa Aq pasn aq o SOA ON | -upaio Aq panssi jyisoda( jo sajeolud)
sAeq 9¢ 01 dn sanunjew
way) yym pesibe sisjsweled pue Uum ‘syisodap s|qe||ed Buipnjoul
sauljepIinb ay) 0} 108(gns siebeuew ISIl 4O103S 88S ‘(seneroos Buip|ing pue syueq) siexe)
sheq 9¢ puny [euisixe Aq pue asnoy-uj SOA ON | ysodep pajel-}ipaid yym sjisodap wiaj
skeq 9¢ 03 dn sapuNjew
way) yum peaibe sisjoweled pue ‘pajed JIpald UHM pue|al| UIBYHON JO puejods ‘ssepn
sauliepIinb ay} 0} J09(gns siebeuew Jou sy ybnoyye ‘puejbuz ur Ajuoyiny 8007 Yim Jo
sfeq $9¢ puny [euiaixa AQ pue asnoy-uj Aunoas ybiH SOA ON | Juswulanob N 8yl yim spsodap ws |
syuow 9 0} dn sjuaw)SaAUl
10} a|qejieAe juasald je si Ajjioe} siyl ,
(davna) .Aupoeq
sheq v9¢ ashoy-u| paYoeg-jA09) SOA ON ysodaq Aouaby jJuawabeuely 1q9q

¢ syjuow
« buney ZlL ulyum
JpPaID WNWIUIN | Sjqewasapay élende)

pouad wnuwixep asn Jo aosuejswnoul) | Ajunsag /a1qeleday | ueoT jaseys JusawWsaAuU|

(Anv xauuy

‘pajeulIwiousp-BbuilIv)s aq }SNW MOJaq Pa}Si| SUBWISBAUI ||V

SIN3NLSIANI A314103dS

46



weyj yjim
poaibe sisyoweled pue saulapinb
ay} 03 1099([gns Ajuo siebeuew

aseya.ind o} Joud

padinbal Juswabue.lie [eipojsny [enjea sed
0] Junoasip e je sseooud bulppiq aAiedW o

e ybnouyj panssi pue Jeaf auo ueyj sso|
Aunjew e yum A31unses 1qap JuslUIoN09)]

Jeah | puny [euieixe Aq pesn aq o] paYoeg-jJA09) SO ON s|jiq Ainseaa
aseyaind
0} Joud pa.inbai jJuswabuelie [eipojsny
way} ypm [s4enssi Jayjo pue suonelodiod ‘syueq Aq
poaibe sisjoweled pue sauljepinb poaNssI aJe Yalym (Sypuow 6 Jo 8l wnwixew
ay} 0} 309lgns Ajuo siebeuew 1811 40103S 89S e yam Ajjesousb) suonebliqo wiey-poys]
syjuow g puny [eussixe Aq pasn aq 0] SOA ON Jaded |elosawwion
‘papJodal pue uayepspun
aq 0} s|eap pJemioy ||e jo Buioel]
“way} yum pesibe sieyeweled pue (nsodap jo pouad snid pouad |eap pajenobau
sauljepinb ay) 0} 198lgns siebeuew 18I 4OL03S @8S ‘o'1) Jesk | > see100s Buip|ing pue
a)ebaibbe ul Jeak | puny jeulaixs Aq pue asnoy-uj SO ON Syueq pajed 1pald Ylim sjeap piemio
sjuawadinbal Aupinb|
pue moj} yseo 03 109lqns des
9 p|NOM }ng }9SIN0 8y} way} yym paalbe siejoweled pue 10 sApooyy Yoy
1e paulwialep aq jou Aew | sauldpinb ay) 0} 108[gns siebeuew Aq Buney vyy ejep Ayunjew Aue eney jou op spunj eseu|
JuawisaAul jo pouad ayl punj jeusaixa Aq pue asnoy-u| SOA ON spun4 jayJe Asuo
ésyuow
« Buney ZL uyym
JPaJD WNWIUIN | 9jqewa3apay élended
pouad wnuwixe ash Jo asuejswnoll9 | Ajunoag /o|qeAeday | ueoT jaieys JuaWSaAU|

47



wieyl yum

paalbe sisjoweled
pue sauljepinb

8y} 0} Joalgns

AJuo siabeuew
puny |euJaxe

"ao au

10 901d uo Joedwi AjaAizebau pjnod yoiym
an Jo ay| bulnp JuswaAow 0} 109lgns
PIBIA : MSH @jed jsauaiul 1o 1oxep, (1) (Q)

aseyaind o} Joud paiinba.
Juswisbue.ie [eipojsny
Jeak

| uey} Jajealb sanunjew
ynm (seneioos Bulpjing
pue s)yueq) siexel

sieef g Agpesneqol | jsi¥0OLD3S 888 ‘pinbiit AjeAneal | Hisodap pajes Jpaid yim
SOA ON ale ‘s|qepeJ} A1oay) ul ybnoyyy (1) (v) | Hsodaq jo sejeoyipsa)d

pouad

186u0| Jano Ayjenb ypalo ul uoneioudep

J9)ealb 1oy jenuajod : s upal) (1)

"JuswiSaAul 8y} Bupjew Jaye asu

way} yum paaibe S@]eJ }S8J8jul JI Jamo| aq [im uinyay (1)
slajaweled pue ‘Ajunjew oy Joud predau Jo papeJ) aq Jeak
sauljepinb ayy 0} Jouued ‘g|nJ [essusb e se : pinbi (1) (g) | ueyy Jejealb sanunjew
109[gns siebeuew “JUBWIUOIIAUD 8)el }SaJdjul yum (senaioos bBuip|ing
puny [euleixe ul sabueyd audsap jisodap Jo anjea |euded pue s)ueq) sioyel
SIBBA G Aq pue asnoy-u| 11 ¥O1D3S 88S ul JuswaAow o (11) “palsaAul pouad Jsodap pajels Upald
ON ON JaA0 uinjal Jo ajel jo Ayureua) (1) (V) yum syisodap wua

‘(ainsodxa

wBiutano Jo ‘Aep ayy Buunp jno pue ul

spuny Jo moj} "a°1) Ajuo ainsodxa 1ybiAep

0} [Iounog 8y} Buiwil snyy uoneinp

uoys AJaA e Jo aq p|noys sjisodap asay)

‘wayl yum syisodap aoe(d 0} Alessadau

8q Aew }I S82UB)SUI BWOS Ul pUE ‘Way}
Buisn anunuoo 0} INq aAleUIB)E B)| BLS}IO Wwnwiuiw
sey [1ouno) ay} ABajesS JuswisaAul 8y} ul | mojaq paddolip sey Bunel
N0 18s euslo Buies ypaio ybiy ayy sjoaw }paJo alaym Jaxueg
sAeq ¥9¢g 9SNoH-U| e/u SOA ON Jabuoj ou yueq s,|IoUNOD By} aJYM | s AQuoyiny yum sysodaq

Jsyjuow
juawysanul « Bunel ZLulypm | Zended

Jo Ajunjew asn }IpaJo wnwiulp a|qewaapay ueo < S)SH pajeIoossy (g

wnwixep JO @duejswnaIl) | Ajunoag 131qeAeday jaieys cnasn Ay (v) FVEITGCEINT)

‘pajeulwousp-BbuilIv)s aq }SNW MOJaq Pa}SI| SUBWISBAUI ||V

SIN3INLSIANI A3I4ID3dS-NON

48



'sso| |euded 1oy

|enualod “a°1 puoq ay} jo aoud uo 1edwl
AlaAnebau pinoo yoiym puoq ubiaianos
40 81| Buunp juswanow 0} 198[gns

PIBIA : MSH @jed jsauaiul 1o 1xep, (1) (Q)

o way} yum su
sewiyousq | poalbe sisypweled Aouauino opN (A) (Ajunjew aiojeq pjos "a'1)
Jesf 0} pue sauljepinb anjeA u uoneioaidde ybnoayy uleb eydeos aseyound o} Joud pauinbai
ay) Buipnjoul ay1 01 109lgns Jo} |enualod ‘papedy J| (A1) -Buuueld Juswebuelie [eIpojsnyd
os/e Ajuo siebeuew piemioy spie ~ wnuue Jad (uinjal
1nq Buipnjour punj |eulaixa 10 a1el) palk umouy ‘Ajiniew oy piay 4 (1) Jeak | jo
sieaf 0} Aq pasn aq o] ‘pinbi7 | SS89X8 Ul S8lN}EW YUM
pa3OB(] JA0D) SOA ON Asvp(11) “Ayenb ypauo jus|ieox3 (1) (v) sH1b yuswuianob yn
“apeuw S| }iIsodap Jaye asl sajel }1Salidul
J1 Isodap yoeq Aed jou [im Jemolloq
s ajed 3sasaiu] (111) 19SIN0 BY) Je UMOUY
10U SI pjay aq Aj|enjoe |[Im JuUsW}SaAUl
way} yym paaibe yo1ym Jano pouad (11) *|[eo Jejiwis e aney
sJa)aweled pue JOU S80p Japud| ay) ‘isodap yoeq Aed o) Jeah
saulapinb ay} 0} b1 8y} sey Jemouloq Ajuo — pinbiy (1) (g) | uey} Jajealb saiunjew
109[gns siebeuew yum (sanaioos Buipjing
punj [BuJaxa ISl 4O10D3S 89S "Ajunjew Jejwis yjim pue syueq) siaye}
sieaf G Aq pue asnoy-u| usodap wus) e Buisn ueyy uinjal Jaybiy Hsodap pajel JIpalo
ON ON Allenusjod ~ swooul peoueyud (1) (v) yum sysodap ajqejied
Jsyjuow
juawysaAul ¢Buney ZLulypm | Zeyded
Jo Ajnjew asn }pPaI) wnwiulp a|qewaapay ueo ¢ SYSH pajeIdossy (g)
wnwixep JO @duejswnaIl) | Ajunoag /31qeAeday Jaieys cnoasn Aymm (v) JjuswijsSoAu]|

49



way} yum paaibe
sJa)aweled pue
sauljlepinb ay) 01
j09lgns siebeuew
punj [eulaxe

Auniew Aue :
uonnyjsui Juaied pajes
-}ipald 10 HNH wouy
a9jueuenb jeioueuly
leuoljipuodun y3im inq
(sana1oos Buipjing pue

Jeaf | Aq pue asnoy-u| 1Sl 40.103S 998S S }IPaIO JO JUBIXS )ew}|n aulwlIa}ap s)yueq) siaye} ysodap
SOA ON JIm jualed jo Buipue)s §pal) (V) pajesun yjm sjisodaq
‘papJooal

pue uayeusapun ‘pouad wsdjul 8y} Ul 8su sajel

aQ 0} s|eap pJemio} 1s8la)ul JO s|je} Buijel 1paJd JI Jusw)isaAul

|le o Bupjoel| ay) Bupnew uo abauai Jouue) (11)

‘way) yym paaibe ‘palsaAUl
sJa)aweled pue Ajlenjoe ale sajuow uaym isnl jou (ysodap jo pouad snid
saulapinb ay} 0} ‘pouad ajoym ayy Jano si ysu upald (1) (g) pouiad |eap pajenobau
109[gns siebeuew "9'1) Jeak | < spouad
punj [BuJaxa ‘Buiuueld J0} sanL100s Buip|ing
sieaf G Aq pue asnoy-u| 1Sl 4O1D3S e8S pJemio} Spie ~ pajsaAul 8Je saluow pue syueq pajel }Ipaid
ON ON | 8y} pouad J8A0 uinjal Jo ajel umouy (1) (V) yum syisodap piemio

ésyjuow
juawysaAul « Bunel ZLulypm | Zeyded

Jo Ajnjew asn }IpaJ1d wnwiulp a|qewaapay ueo £ S)SH pajeIdossy (g)

wnwixep JO @duejswnaIl) | Ajunoag /31qeAeday Jaieys cnoasn Aymm (v) JjuswijsSoAu]|

50



Annex B

FITCH ratings

n_n

Note: The modifiers "+" or
major rating categories.

may be appended to a rating to denote relative status within

Long Term Ratings

AAA - Highest credit quality. '"AAA' ratings denote the lowest expectation of credit
risk. They are assigned only in case of exceptionally strong capacity for payment of
financial commitments. This capacity is highly unlikely to be adversely affected by
foreseeable events.

AA - Very high credit quality. 'AA' ratings denote expectations of very low credit risk.
They indicate very strong capacity for payment of financial commitments. This
capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

A - High credit quality. 'A' ratings denote expectations of low credit risk. The
capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered strong. This capacity
may, nevertheless, be more vulnerable to changes in circumstances or in economic
conditions than is the case for higher ratings.

BBB - Good credit quality. 'BBB' ratings indicate that there is currently expectations
of low credit risk. The capacity for payment of financial commitments is considered
adequate but adverse changes in circumstances and economic conditions are more
likely to impair this capacity. This is the lowest investment grade category.

Short Term Ratings

F1 - Highest credit quality. Indicates the strongest capacity for timely payment of
financial commitments; may have an added "+" to denote any exceptionally strong
credit feature.

F2 - Good credit quality. A satisfactory capacity for timely payment of financial
commitments, but the margin of safety is not as great as in the case of the higher
ratings.

F3 - Fair credit quality. The capacity for timely payment of financial commitments is
adequate; however, near term adverse changes could result in a reduction to non
investment grade.

B - Speculative. Minimal capacity for timely payment of financial commitments, plus
vulnerability to near term adverse changes in financial and economic conditions.

C - High default risk. Default is a real possibility. Capacity for meeting financial
commitments is solely reliant upon a sustained, favorable business and economic
environment.

RD - Indicates an entity that has defaulted on one or more of its financial
commitments, although it continues to meet other obligations.

D - Indicates an entity or sovereign that has defaulted on all of its financial
obligations.

51



Viability Ratings

aaa: Highest fundamental credit quality

'aaa’ ratings denote the best prospects for ongoing viability and lowest expectation
of failure risk. They are assigned only to banks with extremely strong and stable
fundamental characteristics, such that they are most unlikely to have to rely on
extraordinary support to avoid default. This capacity is highly unlikely to be
adversely affected by foreseeable events.

aa: Very high fundamental credit quality

'aa’ ratings denote very strong prospects for ongoing viability. Fundamental
characteristics are very strong and stable; such that it is considered highly unlikely
that the bank would have to rely on extraordinary support to avoid default. This
capacity is not significantly vulnerable to foreseeable events.

a: High fundamental credit quality

'a’ ratings denote strong prospects for ongoing viability. Fundamental characteristics
are strong and stable, such that it is unlikely that the bank would have to rely on
extraordinary support to avoid default. This capacity may, nevertheless, be more
vulnerable to adverse business or economic conditions than is the case for higher
ratings.

bbb: Good fundamental credit quality

'bbb' ratings denote good prospects for ongoing viability. The bank's fundamentals
are adequate, such that there is a low risk that it would have to rely on extraordinary
support to avoid default. However, adverse business or economic conditions are
more likely to impair this capacity.

bb: Speculative fundamental credit quality

'bb’' ratings denote moderate prospects for ongoing viability. A moderate degree of
fundamental financial strength exists, which would have to be eroded before the
bank would have to rely on extraordinary support to avoid default. However, an
elevated vulnerability exists to adverse changes in business or economic conditions
over time.

b: Highly speculative fundamental credit quality

'b’ ratings denote weak prospects for ongoing viability. Material failure risk is present
but a limited margin of safety remains. The bank's capacity for continued
unsupported operation is vulnerable to deterioration in the business and economic
environment.

ccc: Substantial fundamental credit risk

Failure of the bank is a real possibility. The capacity for continued unsupported
operation is highly vulnerable to deterioration in the business and economic
environment.

cc: Very high levels of fundamental credit risk
Failure of the bank appears probable.

c: Exceptionally high levels of fundamental credit risk
Failure of the bank is imminent or inevitable

f: 'f' ratings indicate an issuer that, in Fitch's opinion, has failed, and that either has
defaulted or would have defaulted had it not received extraordinary support or
benefited from other extraordinary measures.

52



Viability Ratings

Support Ratings are Fitch Ratings' assessment of a potential supporter's propensity to
support a bank and of its ability to support it. Its propensity to support is a judgment made
by Fitch Ratings. Its ability to support is set by the potential supporter's own Issuer Default
Ratings, both in foreign currency and, where appropriate, in local currency. Support Ratings
do not assess the intrinsic credit quality of a bank. Rather they communicate the agency's
judgment on whether the bank would receive support should this become necessary.

Definitions:

1:A bank for which there is an extremely high probability of external support. The potential
provider of support is very highly rated in its own right and has a very high propensity to
support the bank in question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-Term
Rating floor of 'A-'.

2:A bank for which there is a high probability of external support. The potential provider of
support is highly rated in its own right and has a high propensity to provide support to the
bank in question. This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-Term Rating floor of
'BBB-".

3:A bank for which there is a moderate probability of support because of uncertainties
about the ability or propensity of the potential provider of support to do so. This probability
of support indicates a minimum Long-Term Rating floor of 'BB-'.

4:A bank for which there is a limited probability of support because of significant
uncertainties about the ability or propensity of any possible provider of support to do so.
This probability of support indicates a minimum Long-Term Rating floor of 'B'.

5:A bank for which there is a possibility of external support, but it cannot be relied upon.
This may be due to a lack of propensity to provide support or to very weak financial ability
to do so. This probability of support indicates a Long-Term Rating floor no higher than 'B-'
and in many cases, no floor at all.

53



This page is intentionally left blank

54



Agenda ltem 7

Unrestricted

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29 JANUARY 2013

RECORDING OF OFFICER DECISIONS FOR EXECUTIVE FUNCTIONS
Director of Corporate Services — Legal

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report seeks the approval of the Committee as to the criteria to be
applied to determine which officer decisions should be recorded and
published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements)
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 (“the
Regulations”).

2 RECOMMENDATION
21 That the Committee approve the criteria proposed in paragraph 5.5.
3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The proposed criteria are considered to strike a reasonable balance between
the desire for transparency evinced by the Regulations and the practical need
not to impose an unrealistic bureaucratic burden upon officers which would be
detrimental to the efficient working of the Council. The criteria proposed have
been endorsed by Corporate Management Team.

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 The Council could require the recording of all Officer decisions under
Executive functions as prescribed by the Regulations. However, such an
option is considered to be unworkable.

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5.1 At its last meeting the Committee considered a report on the Regulations. In
particular, the report discussed the difficulties attendant upon the (possibly
unintended) drafting of the Regulations which required all officer decisions in
the discharge of an Executive function to be recorded as prescribed by the
regulations. The Committee decided that it wished to approve the criteria for
determining which non-Key officer decisions should be recorded in
accordance with the Regulations.

52 The Regulations apply to all decisions made by officers in the discharge of
Executive functions, excluding (probably) purely administrative functions such
as ordering stationery. “Executive functions” covers all those functions other
than those which are the responsibility of committees (Planning Development
Control, Licensing and Employment) or full Council (approval of the budget
and policy framework).

53 Under the Regulations, as soon as reasonably practicable after an officer has
made a decision he/she should produce a written statement to include:-

- a record of the decision including the date it was made
- the reasons for the decision

55



54

5.5

5.6

6.1

Unrestricted

- details of any alternative options considered and rejected by the
officer when making the decision

- a record of any conflict of interest declared by any Executive Member
who was consulted on the matter

- whether the Head of Paid Service (the Chief Executive) granted any
dispensation in respect of a conflict of interest

The statement should be published on the Council’'s web-site.

To give the Regulations a literal interpretation would be to impose a very
significant administrative burden on officers. Any benefits from an increase in
transparency would be considerably more than offset by the consequent
burden generated. However, it is accepted that the Regulations cannot be
ignored and therefore in order to give effect to them in a practical manner
criteria need to be developed as to which officer decisions should be
published.

It is proposed that officer decisions falling within any of the categories below
should be recorded as set out in the Regulations:-

(a) any decision to incur expenditure or the making of a saving of £10,000
or more

(b) any decision taken following public consultation

(c) any decision which would have a material impact upon ten or more
persons

(d) any decision which is taken in exercise of an express delegation made
to an officer by the Executive, an Executive Committee or an
individual Executive Member

(e) a decision whether or not to list a property as an Asset of Community
Value (the “Community Right to Bid” under the Localism Act)

) a decision whether or not to accept an expression of interest
submitted under the Community Right to Challenge

It is not possible to predict with any degree of certainty how many decisions
will fall within the categories set out in 5.5 above or what the impact will be of
implementing the Regulations as proposed in this report. It would therefore
be appropriate for the categories to be reviewed after an appropriate period
has elapsed to allow the impact to be gauged.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

56



Unrestricted

Borough Treasurer

6.2 There are no financial implications directly arising.

Equalities Impact Assessment

6.3 Not required.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

6.4 Not relevant.
Other Officers

6.5 None.

7 CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

71 None.

Method of Consultation

7.2 Not Applicable.

Representations Received

7.3 Not Applicable.

Background Papers
None.

Contact for Further Information
Alex Jack, Borough Solicitor — 01344 355679
Alex.jack@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref.
AlJ/f/reports/Governance & Audit — Recording of Officer Decisions - 2013

57



This page is intentionally left blank

58



Agenda Iltem 8

Unrestricted

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29 JANUARY 2013

REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS
Director of Corporate Services — Legal

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report seeks the Committee’s endorsement to a draft revised Code of
Conduct for Members (“the draft Code”) which is set out at Annexe A to this
report.

2 RECOMMENDATION

21 That the Committee recommend to the Governance and Audit
Committee that the draft Code of Conduct for Members, incorporating
the amendments proposed by the Standards Committee, be submitted
to Council for adoption.

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 The draft Code is the outcome of the deliberations of a Member Working
Group which was constituted to formulate a new revised Code of Conduct for
Members. The draft Code has been considered by the Standards Committee
which proposed a number of minor amendments.

3.2 The draft Code is considered to set out an appropriate framework for the
conduct of Members and is consistent with the principles referred to in section
28 of the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”) which are set out in the Annexe to the
draft Code.

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 Both the Department for Communities and Local Government and the Local
Government Association have issued draft model Codes of Conduct which
were considered by the Member Working Group. The LGA model (which is
similar to the CLG model) is attached as Annexe B to this report. However,
the Working Group was unanimously of the view that a Code similar in format
to the existing Code was much to be preferred over the CLG and LGA models
which are considered to be somewhat aspirational in nature and fail to
provide a definite framework for Member conduct which can be clearly
understood by both Members and the public.

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

Background

5.1 The previous statutory regime for local authority Members standards which
was set out in the Local Government Act 2000 required each Council to adopt
a Code of Conduct in a form prescribed by statutory instrument. The Act
abolished that regime. Instead, the Act (inter alia) requires each Council to
adopt a Code dealing with the conduct that is expected of Members and co-
opted Members when they are acting in such capacity. There is no

59



52

5.3

5.4

Unrestricted

prescribed form of Code but any Code adopted must, when viewed as a
whole, be consistent with the Nolan principles (so called because they were
first set out by the Committee for Standards in Public Life when the late Lord
Nolan was chairman), namely:-

- selflessness

- integrity

- objectivity

- accountability
- openness

- honesty

- leadership

Also, the Code must include the provision which the Council considers
appropriate in respect of the registration and disclosure of pecuniary and
other interests. The Code should not contain anything which is inconsistent
with the new provisions which the Act sets out in relation to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests (which term is defined in the Act and regulations made
thereunder).

The provisions of the Act relating to Member conduct were brought in at short
notice. Insufficient time was afforded to local authorities to give proper
consideration as to the content of new Codes of Conduct. Accordingly, at its
Annual Meeting in May, the Council adopted an interim Code (which
essentially was in the same format as the previously prescribed Code but with
alterations to reflect the new statutory requirements relating to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests). The report to Council indicated that subsequently
consideration would be given to a new Code. To that end a member Working
Group was formed comprising Councillors from the majority group, the
minority group and non-group Members. The draft Code has been
considered by Corporate Management Team, which suggested a small
number of minor amendments, and by the Standards Committee at its
meeting on 14 January 2013. The Standards Committee endorsed CMT’s
amendments and also proposed a number of minor amendments. The
alterations cumulatively proposed by CMT and the Standards Committee are
shown in italic script on the draft Code attached.

The Draft Code

The draft Code is in similar format to the previously prescribed Code. Section
3 of the draft Code (“General Obligations”) is in identical form to the former
Code save that paragraph 4.1(iv)(c) relating to the disclosure of exempt
information spells out the requirements of the Council before such information
can be disclosed (the former Code simply provided that any disclosure had to
be “in compliance with the reasonable requirements of the Council”’). The
giving of two clear working days notice will allow the Chief Executive / Deputy
Chief Executive / Borough Solicitor the opportunity (if appropriate) to counsel
the Member against disclosure and in extremis to seek a court injunction
precluding disclosure.

The main alterations to the former prescribed Code (and the current interim
Code) are around the issue of the registration and disclosure of interests and
the consequences of having an interest. The former prescribed Code defined
a lengthy list of “Personal Interests” which required registration and
disclosure. In addition, that Code provided that if a Personal Interest was

60



5.5

5.6

5.7

Unrestricted

such that a reasonable member of the public would reasonably conclude that
the Member’s judgement of the public interest in relation to the matter would
be affected by the Personal Interest then the interest would also fall into the
category of “Prejudicial Interest”. The main consequences of having a
Prejudicial Interest were that the Member was precluded from either
participation in the decision making process or “improperly” seeking to
influence a decision about the matter.

The Act replaced the concept of “Personal Interests” and “Prejudicial
Interests” with “Disclosable Pecuniary Interests”. The consequences of
having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are similar to those previously
pertaining to Prejudicial Interests but failure to comply now also constitutes a
criminal offence. The extent to which the Police will seek to investigate any
allegations remains to be seen. The interim Code retained the list of
“Personal Interests” but currently the only requirement placed upon Members
with such an interest (provided it does not also constitute a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest) is that it has to be registered.

One issue which Members of the Working Group felt particularly strongly
about was that of membership of external organisations. In the nature of
things, many Councillors are involved in the activities of other community
groups or public bodies. It was felt that involvement in such organisations
should not preclude a Member from involvement in the decision making
process on a matter which affects such a group or body although if the
Member is not appointed by the Council the Member should, in the interests
of transparency, declare the interest (which would then be registered). If the
Member has been appointed by the Council there should be no requirement
to declare any interest as the appointment will already be a matter of public
record (appointments to external organisations are set out each year in a
report to the Annual Council Meeting). Paragraph 10 of the draft Code
encapsulates the views of the Working Group relating to such interests.
There is a possibility that in a limited number of instances the involvement of
a Member with such an interest could infringe the common law relating to bias
and for that reason paragraph 1.3 provides that when such circumstances
obtain a Member should not involve themselves in the decision making
process even though they may not have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or
an “Affected Interest” (as to which see below).

The draft Code faithfully reflects the Act in so far as it relates to Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests (paragraph 7 of the draft Code). However, under the Act,
only the interest of the Member or his/her spouse or partner falls within the
definition of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest. Accordingly, the interest of a
child or close friend of the Member does not fall within the definition and
therefore a Member would not be infringing the statutory requirements if, for
example, he/she participated in a decision whether or not to approve an
application for a planning permission or a grant submitted by such a person.
Quite obviously, such a scenario would be repugnant to public confidence in
the workings of the Council. In order to address that statutory lacuna the draft
Code formulates the concept of an “Affected Interest” (see paragraph 8). The
consequences under the Code of having an Affected Interest will be identical
to those for having a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and therefore it will not
be necessary for Members to make a judgement as to which category an
interest falls within (though of course, failure to comply with the provisions of
the Code relating to an Affected Interest will not render a Member susceptible

61



5.8

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

Unrestricted

to criminal prosecution unless it also constitutes a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest).

The main variation to the draft Code formulated by the Member Working
Group which has been proposed by the Standards Committee is that relating
to the value of gifts or hospitality received by Members (paragraph 11). The
previous prescribed Code specified a threshold of £25 (below which
gifts/hospitality need not be registered). The Working Group considered that
the threshold should be increased to £75. The suggestion gave rise to a
significant level of debate at the Standards Committee, many Members of
which felt that £75 would be too high a threshold. Although not ruling out an
increase the Standards Committee recommended that the threshold should
remain at £25 until such time as it is able to give more detailed consideration
on receiving a report specifically addressing the issue.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

Borough Treasurer

There are no financial implications directly arising.

Equalities Impact Assessment

Not required.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

None.
Other Officers

None.

CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

As set out in section 5 above, the draft Code has been formulated by a
Member Working Group and has been considered by the Standards
Committee and CMT.

Method of Consultation

Meetings of the Working Group, the Standards Committee and CMT.

Representations Received

As alluded to in section 5 above.

62



Unrestricted

Background Papers
File of Borough Solicitor

Contact for Further Information
Alex Jack, Borough Solicitor — 01344 355679
alex.jack@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref
AJ/flreports/Standard Committee — 14 January 2013 — Revised Code of Conduct for
Members

63



This page is intentionally left blank

64



Annexe A

1.1

1.2

1.3

CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS AND CO-OPTED MEMBERS

BRACKNELL FOREST BOROUGH COUNCIL

INTRODUCTION

This Code of Conduct has been adopted by the Council pursuant to the
Localism Act 2011 and the duty to promote and maintain high standards of

conduct by Members and Co-opted Members of the Council.

Failure to comply with the requirements of Section 7 of this Code, other than
paragraph7.3(c), constitutes a criminal offence for which you may be
prosecuted. Failure to comply with any of the other sections of the Code or
paragraph 7.3(c) may result in public censure of you by the Council.

Common law developed by the courts indicates that, at least in relation to
“quasi-judicial” functions such as Licensing and Planning, Members should
not participate if a reasonable member of the public who is neither
complacent nor unduly sensitive or suspicious would in the circumstances
conclude that there is a real possibility of bias. This Code requires Members
to excuse themselves from involvement in decision making where they have a
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” or an “Affected Interest” (as defined by the
Code) in the matter under consideration. However, it is possible that when
exercising such a “quasi-judicial” function interests other than Disclosable
Pecuniary Interests or Affected Interests could lead a reasonable member of
the public to conclude that there was a real possibility of bias on the part of a
Member. In such circumstances the Member should not participate in the
decision making process (i.e. the Member should not vote nor, unless they
are requested by the Chairman of the Committee on a point of clarification,
speak on the matter). In cases of doubt or difficulty advice should be sought

from the Borough Solicitor.

65



Annexe A

2.

2.1

APPLICATION

This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting as a Member or
Co-opted Member of the Council. A Co-opted Member is a person who is not

a Borough Councillor but who —

(a) is a Member of any Committee or sub-Committee of the Council; or
(b) is a Member of, and represents the Council on, any Joint Committee
or joint Committee of the Council

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any
meeting of the Committee or sub-Committee.

Throughout this Code “Member” shall be deemed to refer also to Co-opted Members.

2.2

3.1

3.2

This Code of Conduct is consistent with and based upon the following

principles:-

e Selflessness
o Integrity

e Objectivity

e Accountability
e Openness

e Honesty

e Leadership

The above terms are expanded in the Annexe to this Code under the heading

‘The Principles’.

GENERAL OBLIGATIONS

You must treat others with respect.

You must not:-

66



Annexe A

41

(a)

(d)

(e)

do anything which may cause the Council to be in breach of any duty
not to discriminate contained in the Equality Act 2012;

bully any person;

do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the

impartiality of those who work for or on behalf of the Council;

conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded as
bringing your office as a Member of the Council into disrepute;

use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer
on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or

disadvantage.

ACCESS TO AND DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION

Do not disclose information given to you in confidence by anyone (including

exempt information provided to you by the Council) or information acquired by

you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a confidential

nature, except where:-

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

(iv)

you have the consent of a person authorised to give it

you are required to do so by law

the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining
professional advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose
the information to any other person, or

the disclosure is:-

(a) in the public interest

(b) made in good faith

(c) in the case of exempt information provided to you by the
Council, only made after giving two clear working days notice
of the intention to disclose (in writing, specifying the
information proposed to be disclosed) has been given to the

Chief Executive or in his absence the Deputy Chief Executive.

67



Annexe A

4.2

5.1

6.1

6.2

7.1

“‘exempt Information” means information described either as such or

as confidential.

Do not prevent another person from accessing information if that person is

entitled to do so by law.

DECISION MAKING

When reaching decisions on any matter you must:-

(a) have regard to any advice provided to you by the Head of Paid
Service (the Chief Executive) by the Borough Treasurer and/or the

Monitoring Officer pursuant to their statutory duties, and

(b) give reasons for the decisions in accordance with any legal

requirements or any additional requirements imposed by the Council.

RESOURCES

When using or authorising the use by others of the resources of the Council

you must:-

(a) act in accordance with the Council’s requirements, and

(b) ensure that such resources are not used improperly for political
purposes (including party political purposes);

You must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of Publicity
made under the Local Government Act 1986

INTERESTS

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

You have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest if it falls within the description set

out in the Schedule to this Code and either:-

68



Annexe A

7.2

7.3

7.4

(a) it is your interest, or

(b) it is an interest of your spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you
are living as husband and wife/as if you were civil partners AND you

are aware that such other person has an interest.

Within 28 days of becoming a Member you must notify the Monitoring Officer
of any Disclosable Pecuniary Interests which you have. Where you become a
Member as a result of re-election or re-appointment the requirement to notify
the Monitoring Officer only applies in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary
Interests not already notified.

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, a Committee, Sub-Committee,
Joint Committee, the Executive or an Executive Committee and you are
aware that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any matter to be

considered:-

(a) if the interest is not registered you must disclose the interest to the

meeting and notify the Monitoring officer within 28 days;

(b) you must not participate in discussion of the matter, or vote on the
matter unless you have been granted a dispensation by the

Monitoring Officer or by the Governance and Audit Committee.

(c) if you are required by the Council’s Standing Orders to withdraw from
the meeting you should notify the Democratic Services Officer in
attendance at the meeting that you are withdrawing as you have an
Interest in the matter.

If you are an Executive Member acting alone in the discharge of a Council
function (i.e. if the matter falls within the Executive Member’s portfolio) and

you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter:-

(a) you must not take any steps in relation to the matter other than for the

purpose of enabling it to be dealt with by another Member, and

69



Annexe A

7.5

(b)

if the interest is not registered you must notify the Monitoring Officer of

the interest.

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in a matter you must not seek

improperly to influence a decision about it.

Affected Interests

You have an Affected Interest in a matter if:-

(a)

(i) a decision in relation to that matter might reasonably be
regarded as affecting the financial position of an Affected Person
to a greater extent than the majority of other residents in your
Ward, or

(i) it is an application for a Licence, permission or consent made
by an Affected Person or which (to your knowledge) an

Affected Person has made objection to the Council

AND

a member of the public, who knows the relevant facts, would
reasonably think that the interest is so significant that it would be likely

to prejudice your judgement of the Public Interest.

The following are “Affected Persons”:-

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)

you
your spouse/partner

your parents and grandparents and those of your spouse/partner

your children and grandchildren and those of your spouse/partner
your employer, business partner or any person whom you have
undertaken work for in the previous two years, and

your employee

a company in which the total nominal value of the securities held by
you/your spouse or partner exceeds £25,000 or more than ten per

cent of the total issued share capital

70



Annexe A

8.2

8.3

8.4

(h)

a person with whom you have a close association

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, a Committee, Sub-Committee,

Joint Committee, or an Executive Committee and you are aware that you

have an Affected Interest in a matter to be considered:-

(a)

(b)

if the interest is not registered you must disclose the interest to the
meeting and (unless you have previously notified the Monitoring
Officer of the interest) notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days (if
the Monitoring Officer determines that the interest is a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest the interest shall be entered on the Council’s
register of interests).

you must not participate in discussion of the matter or vote on the
matter unless you have been granted a dispensation by the

Monitoring officer or by the Governance and Audit Committee.

if you are required by the Council’'s Standing Orders to withdraw from
the meeting you should notify the Democratic Services Officer in
attendance at the meeting that you are withdrawing as you have an

interest in the matter.

If you are an Executive Member acting alone in the discharge of a Council

function (i.e. if the matter falls within the Executive Member’s portfolio) and

you have an Affected Interest in a matter:-

(a)

(b)

you must not take any steps in relation to the matter other than for the
purpose of enabling it to be dealt with by another Member, and

if the interest is not registered you must notify the Monitoring Officer of
the interest

If you have an Affected Interest in a matter you must not seek improperly to

influence a decision about it.

71



Annexe A

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

Sensitive Interests

If you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Affected Interest but you
consider that disclosure of the interest could lead to you or a person
connected with you being subject to violence or intimidation and the
Monitoring Officer agrees with that assessment then instead of disclosing the
interest you need only disclose the fact that you have a Disclosable Pecuniary
Interest or an Affected Interest (as the case may be) without giving details of
that interest.

Membership of External Organisations and Association

This section of the Code applies where you are a member of or in a position
of general control or management of any body:-

(a) exercising functions of a public nature
(b) directed to charitable purposes, or
(c) one of whose principal purposes includes the influencing of public or

policy (including any political party or trade union)

and you have not been appointed or nominated in such capacity by the

Council.

Within 28 days of becoming a Member you must notify the Monitoring Officer
of your membership/position. Where you become a Member as a result of re-
election or reappointment the requirement to notify the Monitoring Officer
only applies in relation to a membership/position not already notified. The
membership/position will be recorded on the Council’s register of Member’s

interests.

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, a Committee, Sub-Committee,
Joint Committee, the Executive or an Executive Committee at which a matter
is to be considered which affects that body to a greater extent than the
majority of residents in your Ward you shall disclose to the meeting your
connection to the body immediately prior to consideration of the matter. You

need not withdraw from the meeting but you should within 28 days notify the

72



Annexe A

Monitoring Officer of the membership/position unless notification has

previously been given.

11. Registration of Gifts and Hospitality

You should promptly register any gifts or hospitality the value of which
exceeds £25 (or the reasonably estimated value of which exceeds £25 where
the value is not disclosed) which you and/or your spouse/partner receive
because (or when it can reasonably be inferred because) you are a Member

of the Council.

73



Annexe A

SCHEDULE

Cateqories of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests

Subject

Employment, office trade, professional

or vocation

Sponsorship

Contracts

Land

Licences

Prescribed Description

Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for

profit or gain

Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
relevant authority) made or provided
within the relevant period in respect of
any expenses incurred by you in carrying
out duties as a Member, or towards your
election expenses.

This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992

Any contract which is made between you
or a relevant person (or a body in which
you or a relevant person has a beneficial
interest) and the Council —

(a) under which goods or services are to
be provided or works are to be executed;
and

(b) which has not been fully discharged

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the Borough.

Any licence (alone or jointly with others)

to occupy land in the Borough for a

month or longer.

74



Annexe A

Subject

Corporate tenancies

Securities

Definitions

Prescribed Description

Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) -
(a) the landlord is the Council; and

(b) the tenant is a body in which you or a
relevant person has a beneficial interest

Any beneficial interest in securities of a
body where —

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a
place of business or land in the Borough;

and
(b) either —
(i) the total nominal value of the

securities exceeds £25,000 or
hundredth of the total
capital of that body; or

one

issued share

(i) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which you or a person has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the

total issued share capital of that class.

“body in which you or a relevant person has a beneficial interest” means a firm in

which you or a relevant person is a partner or a body corporate of which you or a

relevant person is a Director, or in the securities of which you or a relevant person

has a beneficial interest.

“director” includes a member of the Committee of management of an industrial

provident society.

75



Annexe A

‘land” excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or over land which does
not carry with it a right for you or a relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to

occupy the land or to receive income.

“relevant period” means the period of one year ending with the day on which you give

a notification of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests to the Monitoring Officer.
“relevant person” is a person falling within 7.1(b) above.

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, bonds, units of a collective
investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act

2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a
building society.

/6



Annexe A

ANNEXE

THE PRINCIPLES

o Selflessness
Members should serve only the public interest and should never improperly
confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person.

e Honesty and Integrity
Members should not place themselves in situations where their honesty and
integrity may be questioned, should not behave improperly and should on all

occasions avoid the appearance of such behaviour

o Objectivity
Members should make decisions on merit, including when making
appointments, awarding contracts, or recommending individuals for rewards

or benefits.

e Accountability
Members should be accountable to the public for their actions and the
manner in which they carry out their responsibilities, and should co-operate
fully and honestly with any scrutiny appropriate to their particular office.

e Openness
Members should be as open as possible about their actions and those of their

authority, and should be prepared to give reasons for those actions.
e Leadership
Members should promote and support these principles by leadership, and by

example, and should act in a way that secures or preserves public

confidence.

Aj/flagreements/Code of Conduct for Members — 2™ July 2012

77



This page is intentionally left blank

/8



Agenda ltem 9

Unrestricted

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29 JANUARY 2013

SCHEME OF DELEGATION TO OFFICERS - CERTIFICATES OF LAWFUL USE
Director of Corporate Services — Legal

1 PURPOSE OF REPORT

1.1 This report proposes that power to determine applications for Certificates of
Lawful Use made under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (“the 1990
Act’) should be delegated to the Chief Officer: Planning and Transport
notwithstanding that such an application might attract objections from more
than three households and/or organisations.

2 RECOMMENDATION

21 That the Scheme of Delegation to Officers set out in Table 1 Part 2 of the
Council’s Constitution be amended such that all applications for a
Certificate of Lawful Use be determined by the Chief Officer: Planning
and Transport (or such other officer within the Planning section as he
may in writing delegate such function to).

3 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 All applications for Certificates of Lawful Use must only be determined by
reference to determined facts and the application of the law to those facts.
Considerations as to the planning merits of the development in respect of
which such an application is made are entirely irrelevant. There is no
discretion upon which Members can bring to bear their planning judgement.
Not infrequently such applications involve consideration of extensive amounts
of evidence and/or legal issues of considerable complexity; in such
circumstances it is unrealistic to anticipate that all of the relevant material can
be placed before the Planning Committee.

4 ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED

4.1 Not to change the Scheme of Delegation as proposed. However, the
consequence would be that applications for Certificates of Lawful Use might
have to be brought to Planning Committee if a single Member so requested or
if there were objections from more than three households and/or
organisations.

5 SUPPORTING INFORMATION

5.1 The 1990 Act provides for two types of Certificates of Lawful Use. The first,
under Section 191, is a Certificate of Lawfulness of Existing Use or
Development (often referred to as “CLEUD’S”). Such Certificates apply to
development which has already taken place (i.e. there has already been a
change of use or operational development has been carried out). The
Council must (i.e. there is no discretion) if the development is “lawful”’. That
term (lawful) is defined to mean:-

79



52

5.3

54

5.5

6.1

6.2

Unrestricted

- that no enforcement action can be taken in respect of the development,
because the period allowed for the Council to take enforcement action
has expired or the development did not require planning permission, and

- the development is not in breach of any existing Enforcement Notice.

The second type of Certificate is a Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Use
or Development (sometimes referred to as “CLOPUD’S”). An application for a
CLOPUD is made by someone who wishes to ascertain whether a proposed
development would be lawful. Again, if the proposed development would be
lawful the Council must issue the Certificate. The criteria for assessing
whether a development would be “lawful” are the same as for a CLEUD.

Certificates of Lawful Use applications are frequently supported by the
submission of extensive volumes of information endeavouring to demonstrate
that a development took place more than four or (depending upon the type of
development) ten years ago. The evidence might, for example, take the form
of a set of invoices, utility bills or statutory declarations. Such applications
also frequently give rise to difficult issues of law. An example is whether a
proposed development falls within one of the many specified categories of
“Permitted Development”. Under the processes agreed between the Borough
Solicitor and the Chief Officer: Planning and Transport no application for a
Certificate of Lawful Use can be determined without legal advice having been
provided.

The Scheme of Delegation to officers as currently drafted provides that all
“applications” (a term broad enough to encompass Certificate of Lawful Use
applications) have to be brought to Planning Committee if a single Member so
requests (supported by a valid “planning reason”) or if “valid planning
objections” are made by more than three households/organisations. Very
often any objections to applications for a Certificate of Lawful Use are made
on the basis of an issue of the planning merit of the development, which
issues are entirely irrelevant to the determination of the application. Arguably,
such objections are not “valid planning objections” or “a valid planning
reason”, but the matter is not beyond doubt. In one recent instance an
application had to be placed on the agenda of the Planning Committee only
for the Committee (in accordance with the officer recommendation) to
delegate the decision to officers.

The recommendation does not propose any incursion into an area of decision
making where Members can exercise their discretion on a matter of planning
judgement.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

Borough Treasurer

There are no financial implications directly arising.

80



Unrestricted

Equalities Impact Assessment

6.3 Not required.

Strategic Risk Management Issues

6.4 None.
Other Officers
6.5 None.

7 CONSULTATION

Principal Groups Consulted

71 None.

Method of Consultation

7.2 Not applicable.

Representations Received

7.3 Not applicable.

Background Papers
None.

Contact for Further Information
Alex Jack, Borough Solicitor — 01344 355679
Alex.jack@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc. Ref.
AlJ/f/reports/Governance & Audit — Scheme of Delegation to Officers
Certificates of Lawful Use — 2013

81



This page is intentionally left blank

82



Agenda ltem 10

Unrestricted

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE
29 JANUARY 2013

1.1

2.1

5.1

5.2

6.1

6.2

ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT PREPARATION
(Director of Corporate Services — Legal)

PURPOSE OF DECISION

This report seeks the nomination of a Member to attend the meeting of the Governance
Working Group which formulates the Annual Governance Statement (‘AGS’)and the AGS
Action Plan.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is invited to nominate a Member to attend the meeting of the
Governance Working Group which formulates the Annual Governance Statement
and resulting Action Plan, for submission to the Committee.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

Member input has been valuable in previous years and accordingly the Committee is
requested to nominate a Member to assist in this year’s preparation of the AGS.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED
None.

SUPPORTING INFORMATION

The CIPFA/SOLACE guidance on Governance for Local Authorities which constitutes
best practice for the Accounts and Audit Regulations requires the production of an AGS.
The review of the Council’s governing arrangements in the Annual Governance Statement
leads to the formulation of an Action Plan to address any weaknesses identified.

For the past three years a Member of the Committee (Councillor Thompson) has been
nominated to attend the meeting of the officer Governance Working Group which
prepares the draft AGS and Action Plan. Member input has been found to be very helpful
and accordingly the Committee is requested to nominate a Member to assist in this year’s
preparation of the AGS.

ADVICE RECEIVED FROM STATUTORY AND OTHER OFFICERS

Borough Solicitor

The Borough Solicitor is the author of this report.

Borough Treasurer

There are no financial implications directly arising.

83



6.3

6.4

6.5

7.1

7.2

7.3

Unrestricted
Equalities Impact Assessment

Not applicable

Strategic Risk Management Issues

None.

Other Officers

None.

CONSULTATION

Principle Groups Consulted
None.

Method of Consultation

Not applicable.
Representations received

Not applicable.

Background Papers

None.

Contact for Further Information

Alex Jack — Borough Solicitor — (01344) 355679
Alex.jack@bracknell-forest.gov.uk

Doc Ref
IKEN 038380

84



	Agenda
	3 Minutes from Previous Meeting
	5 Annual External Audit Matters
	Annex A - EAM1
	Annex B - External Audit Matters

	6 Treasury Management Report
	Treasury Management Report - Governance  Audit Annex A
	TM Report 2013-14 - Annex B

	7 Recording of Officer Decisions for Executive Functions
	8 Code of Conduct for Members
	CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS - 2nd July 2012

	9 Scheme of Delegation to Officers - Certificate of Lawful Use
	10 Annual Governance Statement Preparation

